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Profile

Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local (also known by its acronym CAFFIL) is an issuer of covered bonds with a portfolio
of assets solely comprised of loans to public sector entities. It is fully owned by the French State-owned development
bank SFIL.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is a French specialized credit institution (société de crédit foncier). Its sole business
is the refinancing of loans to public sector entities through the issue of covered bonds, called obligations fonciéres.

Since it was created in February 2013, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is in charge of financing loans to French local
governments granted by La Bangue Postale. As of 2016, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local will also refinance credits
for large French export contracts, with the unconditional and irrevocable guarantee of the French State.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is a 100%-owned subsidiary of SFIL, which also manages the Company in accord-
ance with article L.513-15 of the Monetary and Financial Code. SFIL is a credit institution approved by the Autorité de
contrdle prudentiel et de résolution (ACPR), 75% of which is held by the French State, 20% by Caisse des Dépodts et Consig-
nations and 5% by La Banque Postale. The shareholding structure of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is thus firmly
anchored in the public sphere, reflecting the missions entrusted to it by the French State.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is the leading European issuer of covered bonds, which are secured by a portfolio
of public sector loans. The Company issues obligations fonciéres (covered bonds) regularly. Their primary characteristics
are that:

* they are regulated by specific legislation,

» they are rated AA+/Aaa/AA by S&P, Moody’s and Fitch,

» they comply with the European directives UCITS and CRD and article 129 of the CRR standard,

* they benefit from the Covered Bond Label created by the European Covered Bond Council (ECBC).

The obligations fonciéres issued by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local are thus eligible for refinancing by the European
Central Bank (ECB) and thus enable investors to benefit from the best prudential treatment.

Key figures

Portfolio of assets Ratio of non-performing loans
(cover pool) (% cover pool)

EUR 60.0 billion 11%

Obligations foncieres Obligations fonciéeres issued
(covered bonds) in 2015

EUR 51.6 billion FUR 6.2 billion

Regulatory Solvency ratio
over-collateralization (Basel IlI)

12.5% 24.0%
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1. General presentation of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local

1.1 - NATURE AND ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

9
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local (also known by its acronym CAFFIL) is a credit institution active in the refinancing 8 c
of loans to public sector entities through the issue of covered bonds, which are called obligations fonciéres. g g
o
It is a specialized credit institution authorized to operate as a société de crédit foncier. As a credit institution, the Company %) E
is subject to all legal and regulatory provisions that apply to credit institutions. It conducts banking transactions in its ordi- E wn

nary course of business. As a société de crédit foncier, these transactions are specialized and have an exclusive purpose, as
defined in articles L.513-2 and following of the Monetary and Financial Code.

In the case of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local, this specialization is exclusively limited to transactions with public
sector entities or entities they guarantee as specified in its October 1, 1999, authorization by the Autorité de contréle pru-
dentiel et de résolution (ACPR) and its own by-laws.

* The authorization mentions that the Company “is approved as a société de crédit foncier the activities of which exclusively
concern the granting or acquisition of loans to public sector entities or those they guarantee, as well as the holding of
securitization units or shares of similar entities when the assets in these securitizations are for at least 90% composed of
assets of the same nature as the above-mentioned loans, in accordance with article 94-11 and IIl of law 99-532".

e The purpose of the Company (article 2 of the by-laws) specifies that the exclusive purpose of the Company is:

- to grant or to acquire exposures on public sector entities as defined in article L.513-4 of the Monetary and Financial
Code as well as securitization units or shares of similar entities considered as exposures on public sector entities as
defined in article L.513-5 of the Monetary and Financial Code;

- to hold securities and other assets under the conditions set by decree to be considered as replacement assets.

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

Sociétés de crédit foncier, which were created by the law of June 1999, are now well-known in the world of bond issuers
and investors. They issue covered bonds called obligations fonciéres and contract other covered debt negotiable or not in
regulated markets. All these instruments are characterized by the legal privilege that primarily affects cash flows from the
Company’s assets to pay the interest and reimbursement of the obligations fonciéres. Sociétés de crédit foncier may also
issue or contract non-covered debt.

Obligations fonciéres constitute a significant element in the international covered bond market.

1.2 - LEGAL AND SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

a. Legal structure and name of the Company

The Company was created on December 29, 1998, for a period of 99 years. It was authorized to operate as a société de
crédit foncier by the Comité des établissements de crédit et des entreprises d’investissement (now a part of ACPR) at its
meeting on July 23, 1999. The authorization became definitive as of October 1, 1999.

On January 31, 2013, the Company took the name Caisse Francaise de Financement Local to replace that of Dexia Municipal
Agency, upon the sale of its sole shareholder, Société de Financement Local (renamed SFIL in June 2015), to the French
State, Caisse des Dépodts et Consignations and La Banque Postale.

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

The Company’s registered office is located at 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne in Issy-les-Moulineaux (92130), France.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is a Société anonyme & Directoire et Conseil de Surveillance, a joint-stock corpora-
tion with an Executive Board and a Supervisory Board, under the provisions of articles L.210-1 and following of the Code of
Commerce. Its operation is regulated by articles L.511-1 and following (credit institutions) and L.513-2 and following (sociétés
de crédit foncier) of the Monetary and Financial Code.

b. Shareholding structure of the Company

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local and its parent company SFIL (formerly Société de Financement Local) are key
elements in the financing of local governments and public hospitals in France introduced by the French State in 2013.
This organization is based on a commercial activity developed by La Banque Postale with refinancing provided by Caisse
Francaise de Financement Local.

General Information
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In 2015, the French State entrusted SFIL and Caisse Francaise de Financement Local with the responsibility to refinance
large export credits with the guarantee of the State (see 1.3.d). The objective is to enable large export credits as well as
French local governments and public hospitals to benefit from optimal financing conditions through a high rating and
irreproachable risk management.

The capital of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is 100% held by SFIL, which also manages the Company in accordance
with article L.513-15 of the Monetary and Financial Code. SFIL is a credit institution approved by the Autorité de contrble
prudentiel et de résolution (ACPR). Its shareholders are the French State (75%), Caisse des Dépodts et Consignations (20%)
and La Banqgue Postale (5%). SFIL’s shareholders are thus firmly anchored in the public sphere, reflecting the missions the
French State assigned it.

The French State is the “reference shareholder” of SFIL and Caisse Francaise de Financement Local for the Autorité de
contrdéle prudentiel et de résolution underlining its commitment to ensure oversight and to influence strategic decisions, as
well as its determination to ensure Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s and SFIL’s ongoing financial transactions if so
required.

1.3 - ECONOMIC MODEL OF CAISSE FRANCAISE DE FINANCEMENT LOCAL

a. Servicing and financing provided by SFIL

The role of SFIL primarily involves the following:

* to ensure the complete operational management of the Company (day-to-day management as well as the operational
management of the reduction in the sensitivity of the structured loans on the balance sheet of Caisse Francaise de
Financement Local), as defined by the regulations applicable to sociétés de crédit foncier, in particular article L.513-15 of
the Monetary and Financial Code;

* to provide Caisse Francaise de Financement Local with the derivatives and non-privileged funding it needs to carry out
its activities.

The funds required to finance the activity of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local (financing of over-collateralization and

intermediated derivatives) are lent to SFIL by its shareholders:

» Caisse des Dépodts et Consignations (CDC) for all the needs linked to operations booked prior to the date of acquisition
(January 31, 2013) and to the new export refinancing activity;

e La Banque Postale (LBP) for all the needs related to loans to French local governments and public hospitals that it
originates.

In addition to commitments of the French State as the reference shareholder, on January 31, 2013, SFIL signed a decla-
ration of support of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local, which is reproduced in this annual financial report - General
information.

It should be noted that SFIL also supplies services for the business of lending to French public sector entities engaged by
La Banque Postale and its joint venture La Banque Postale Collectivités Locales. These services concern activities involving
commercial support, financial oversight, the supply of data for risk analysis and back office operations.

b. Other management agreements

Specific individual agreements have been established with entities that have transferred assets to the société de crédit
foncier, and continue to ensure management for their national clientele. At the end of 2015, there were agreements with
the following entities: Kommunalkredit Austria (Austria), Belfius Bangue et Assurances (Belgium), and Dexia Crediop (ltaly).
These agreements already existed in previous years.

Starting in 2015, management of new registered covered bonds (RCB) is entrusted to Landesbank Baden-Wiirttemberg
(LBBW). Dexia Kommunalbank Deutschland continues to manage registered covered bonds issued prior to 2015.

c. Partnership between La Banque Postale and Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local

Since the end of 2012, La Banque Postale markets loans to the French local public sector and public hospitals. The loans
originated are exclusively in euros with a vanilla interest rate.

Within the framework of the new organization of the financing of the French local public sector and public hospitals, Caisse
Francaise de Financement Local and La Banque Postale signed a partnership agreement. La Banque Postale committed to
propose to Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local all the loans that would be eligible for its cover pool.

This partnership enables Caisse Francaise de Financement Local to maintain its control of the credit risk through a two-

stage analysis:

« When the loan is originated, the initial analysis of the counterparty is carried out simultaneously at the two entities. The
loans that do not meet the credit and eligibility criteria of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local cannot be transferred
to its balance sheet. Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s eligibility criteria are strictly monitored by internal manage-
ment policies and limit eligible counterparties to French local public sector entities and public hospitals.

6 | Caisse Francaise de Financement Local Annual Financial Report 2015
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» Before loans originated by La Banque Postale are sold to Caisse Francaise de Financement Local, a new analysis of the
assets is conducted, and Caisse Francgaise de Financement Local may refuse a loan prior to the sale if the asset no longer
meets the criteria.

As required by law, the sale of loans to Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is carried out by using a transfer form (bor-
dereau) that is specific to sociétés de crédit foncier.

d. Refinancing of export credits
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All of the authorizations required to expand the activities of SFIL and Caisse Francaise de Financement Local to include
the refinancing of large export credits were obtained in 2015. Since then, Caisse Francgaise de Financement Local may grant
loans to SFIL in order to refinance its export credits. Such loans benefit from an irrevocable and unconditional 100% guar-
antee by the French State.

This new business will bring Caisse Francaise de Financement Local closer to the French State, without modifying the risk

8 4,

profile of its cover pool. 8 T
o O

cE

The system will function as follows: )
e SFIL will contribute to the financial proposal made by one or more banks in the banking syndicate granting the buyer %) E
credit covered by the export credit insurance guaranteed by the State®. Then, these banks will sell all or part of the loans E wn

(and the attached rights) to SFIL and will keep at least the share of the export credit not covered by the insurance (usu-
ally 5%).

Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local will grant a loan to SFIL to enable it to refinance the acquired export credit. This
refinancing loan will benefit from an irrevocable and unconditional 100% guarantee by the French State, referred to as
an “enhanced guarantee®”. Loans granted by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local to SFIL to refinance the purchased
export credits will thus constitute exposures that are totally guaranteed by the French State and eligible for the cover pool
of a société de crédit foncier. These loans will also comply with the European CRR regulation (article 129, which specifies
the assets authorized for inclusion in a cover pool to ensure that the covered bonds will benefit from the best prudential
treatment).

These new loans, like the new French public sector loans marketed by La Banque Postale, will be added to the portfolio of
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local, which is financed by the issue of obligations fonciéres. Given the current size of the
cover pool and the growth of its traditional line of business, the percentage share of these activities will increase little by
little and will only become significant in several years.

French GAAP IFRS
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1.4 - LEGAL FRAMEWORK

a. European framework

The obligations fonciéres issued by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local are covered bonds. Many countries have passed
specific legislations for covered bonds in recent years, and the number of issuers has risen significantly.

In September 2015, the European Commission launched a survey on the need to harmonize the different national legal
frameworks for covered bonds. The responses of issuers and other stakeholders in this market were sent to the European
Commission in January 2016 and will be studied in 2016. Two European directives govern and define covered bonds. The
first is the UCITS directive (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities, which concerns the legislative,
regulatory and administrative aspects of certain vehicles for collective investment in securities), article 52-4, and the second
is the CRD (Capital Requirements Directive), which complements the related CRR regulation (Capital Requirements Regu-
lation), article 129.

These two directives specify the assets that may be incorporated into the portfolio (cover pool) financed by the covered
bonds, the privilege that protects investors, as well as the required level of public oversight and transparency in terms of
communication. Investors in bonds that satisfy the requirements of these two directives benefit from financial and regula-
tory advantages.

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

The obligations foncieres issued by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local satisfy the requirements of these two European
directives. In this regard, they benefit from a 10% preferential risk weighting in the calculation of the solvency ratio with the
standard method (given their current rating).

Current and future obligations fonciéres issued by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local respect the conditions of eligibility
for refinancing by the European Central Bank.

(1) Public guarantees for foreign trade, which in particular cover export credit insurance operations, are granted by the Minister in charge of the Economy,
once approved by the Guarantees and Foreign Trade Credit Commission. They were formerly managed by Coface, but since the amended 2015 finance law,
they are entrusted to an entity the State has asked to manage and deliver these guarantees, under the State’s control, on its behalf and in its name. This
public entity also manages and delivers enhanced guarantees under the State’s control, on its behalf and in its name.

(2) The enhanced guarantee was introduced by law 2012-1510 of December 29, 2012, and the decree 2013-693 of July 30, 2013.

General Information
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In addition, all the obligations fonciéres backed by the cover pool of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local benefit from
the Covered Bond Label, which was created in 2012 by the European Covered Bond Council (ECBC) to improve the quality
of financial information and the transparency of the European covered bond market.

To meet Label requirements, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local committed to respect the above-mentioned directives
and to ensure a high level of transparency in its communication to investors. All detailed information on the issues and cover
pool of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is now posted on the Covered Bond Label site (https:/www.coveredbond-
label.com/issuer/47/).

b. French legislative framework and regulations

Sociétés de crédit foncier are governed by the contents of articles L.513-2 to L.513-27 and R.513-1 to R.513-18 of the Monetary
and Financial Code.

These articles of the law are complemented by the following regulatory texts:

* regulation 99-10 of the Comité de la réglementation bancaire et financiere of July 9, 1999, as amended, relating to sociétés
de crédit foncier and sociétés de financement de I'habitat;

* ACPR instructions 2011-1-06 and 2011-1-07, and new instructions 2014-1-16 and 2014-1-17 of December 8, 2014.

In addition to these regulations and the law on sociétés de crédit foncier, which will be described below, Caisse Francaise
de Financement Local is subject to the same obligations as credit institutions in terms of reporting vis-a-vis the regulator
and respect for liquidity ratios (LCR, NSFR). The solvency ratio, large exposures and the leverage ratio are reported to the
regulator on a consolidated basis, at the level of the parent company SFIL.

1. General framework

Article L.513-2 describes the general framework of the activities of sociétés de crédit foncier, in particular:

 their exclusive purpose which is to finance guaranteed home loans or loans to the public sector, or replacement assets,
and the issue of obligations fonciéres and other resources benefiting or not from the legal privilege;

» the possibility to obtain financing by assigning in guarantee certain assets (which no longer contribute to the calculation
of over-collateralization);

* the impossibility of owning subsidiaries or affiliates.

Application to Caisse Francaise de Financement Local

The assets are comprised of commitments on public sector entities. These assets are financed through the issue of debt that
is covered by a legal privilege that guarantees them a priority right on the cash flows generated by the assets. The portion
of assets that is not financed by covered debt - over-collateralization - is funded by the Company’s equity and debt that
does not benefit from the privilege, which is subordinated to the covered debt. Non-privileged debt is provided by SFIL, the
sole shareholder of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local.

Since Caisse Francgaise de Financement Local is not allowed to have any subsidiaries or affiliates, it does not publish consoli-
dated financial statements and has no obligation to produce IFRS financial statements. Nonetheless, for reasons of comparability
and transparency, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local publishes annual and half year financial statements according to IFRS.

2. Assets
Articles L.513-3 (home loans), L.513-4 (commitments on public sector entities), L.513-5 (securitization units) and L.513-6
(replacement assets) define the exposures that may be included in the assets of sociétés de crédit foncier.

Application to Caisse Francaise de Financement Local

The assets held by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local are solely comprised of commitments on public sector entities
that are eligible by the terms of article L.513-4 of the Monetary and Financial Code, i.e. States, local governments or groups
of such, public sector entities in the European Economic Area, Switzerland, the United States of America, Canada and
Japan. These commitments are comprised of loans and bond issues representing a commitment on, or totally guaranteed
by, these public bodies.

Other assets, which current legislation calls replacement assets, may be acquired if they correspond to exposures on credit
institutions benefiting from at least a Step 1 rating (level triple A or double A) or, when their maturity does not exceed
100 days, from a Step 2 rating (level simple A), their total amount is limited to 15% of the total of outstanding obligations
fonciéres and other debt benefiting from the legal privilege (registered covered bonds in the case of Caisse Francaise de
Financement Local).

Most of the assets on Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s balance sheet were generated by the Dexia Group’s commer-
cial activities. Since the beginning of 2013, the new assets of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local are exclusively loans
to French local governments and French public hospitals granted by La Bangue Postale, or new loans granted directly by
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local in conjunction with the reduction of its outstanding sensitive structured loans.
Beginning in 2016, new assets made up of loans designed to refinance large export credits guaranteed by the French State
will become part of the portfolio of assets of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local.

3. Liabilities and the privilege

Article L.513-2 specifies that to finance their assets, sociétés de crédit foncier may issue debt that benefits (obligations
fonciéres or other covered resources) or does not benefit from the privilege. Article L.513-10 makes it possible to cover the
assets and the privileged liabilities by derivative instruments that thus benefit from the privilege.

8 | Caisse Francaise de Financement Local Annual Financial Report 2015
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Article L.513-15 requires that a société de crédit foncier entrust the management of its operations to another credit insti-
tution with which it has signed an agreement. To maintain the privilege that benefits investors in obligations fonciéres and
other covered resources, a société de crédit foncier should not have any employee (who would benefit in French law from a
first-rank privilege). This management agreement itself benefits from the privilege of article L.513-11, pari passu with holders
of privileged debt.

Article L.513-11 describes this privilege, in particular:

that when a société de crédit foncier is subject to bankruptcy or liquidation procedures, cash flows generated by the
assets, after any financial instrument hedges if such be the case, are allocated in priority to serve the obligations fonciéres
and other resources benefiting from the privilege, also after any financial instrument hedges if such be the case;

that the liquidation of a société de crédit foncier does not accelerate the reimbursement of obligations foncieres and
other debt benefiting from the privilege, which continue to be paid at their contractual due dates with priority over all
other commitments. These other commitments can only be settled after all debt benefiting from the privilege has been
discharged.

Article L.513-20 stipulates that the bankruptcy or liquidation of the shareholder of a société de crédit foncier cannot be
extended to the société de crédit foncier.
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Application to Caisse Francaise de Financement Local g g
The contracts of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local that benefit from the legal privilege are obligations fonciéres and L o
registered covered bonds that it issues, the hedging derivative contracts and the servicing agreement signed with SFIL. %) E
In addition to its equity, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local uses two categories of debt to finance its assets: E wn

* debt that benefits from the legal privilege, defined by law as obligations fonciéres or other resources benefiting from the
legal privilege by reason of their contract. Caisse Francaise de Financement Local thus issues registered covered bonds
benefiting from the legal privilege by reason of their contract in the same way as obligations fonciéres; intended for Ger-
man institutional investors, these private placements governed by German law also benefit from the French legal privilege
attached to issues of sociétés de crédit foncier.

* debt that does not benefit from the legal privilege includes debt that is not covered by the assets and which, for this
reason, is subordinated vis-a-vis debt benefiting from the privilege (cf. chapter 5 below). With equity, it finances over-col-
lateralization. It may be of three types:

- debt negotiated according to the terms of a financing agreement signed with the parent company;

- may benefit, in its own name, from access to Bangue de France refinancing operations. Caisse Francaise de Financement
Local implemented the organizational and IT procedures required to participate in the refinancing operations of the
Banqgue de France, and tests them regularly. The financing obtained does not benefit from the privilege specified by the
legislation on sociétés de crédit foncier, but is guaranteed by assets assigned to the central bank. These pledged assets
are temporarily excluded from the cover pool and the calculation of the over-collateralization ratio;

- financing obtained from credit institutions within the framework of repurchase agreements (repo).

French GAAP IFRS
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In addition, on January 31, 2013, SFIL, the parent company of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local, signed a declaration
of support ensuring that “Société de Financement Local and the French State, its reference shareholder, will ensure that
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local will always be able to pursue its activity in an ongoing manner and to honor its
financial commitments in compliance with the obligations imposed by banking regulations in effect”. This declaration of
support is reproduced in issuance documents and the annual financial report of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local.

4. Other provisions

The other articles of the Monetary and Financial Code define management and control procedures for sociétés de crédit
foncier. They can be consulted on the Company’s Website (http://www.caissefrancaisedefinancementlocal.fr/en/portrait/
la-loi/) or on the official Legifrance Website (http://www.legifrance.gouv.fr/).

It can be noted that article L.513-12 and article R.513-8 of the Monetary and Financial Code require that the over-
collateralization ratio, i.e. the ratio between the assets covering the privileged debt and the debt benefiting from the privi-
lege at all times be greater than 105%.

The items concerning this ratio, as well as the management of the interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risks are

discussed below in the chapters dedicated to these subjects.

1.5 - RATINGS OF THE OBLIGATIONS FONCIERES ISSUED BY CAISSE FRANGAISE DE FINANCEMENT LOCAL

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

The issuance program of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is rated by the three main rating agencies - Standard &
Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.

The ratings of the bonds issued by Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local are at the highest level of credit quality (Step 1).
This requires that the quality of the cover pool and strict management rules be consistent with the criteria and approaches
of the three agencies.

The principle by which each agency rates obligations fonciéres (and covered bonds in general) involves taking as a start-
ing point the issuer’s rating or that of the parent company if the issuer is not rated, and enhancing this rating by one or
more notches in function of the current safeguards (legal framework, quality of assets, asset/liability management, over-
collateralization, etc.).

General Information
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The rating of SFIL is now set at the same level as that of France for S&P and one notch below France for Moody’s and Fitch.
These very good ratings have been attributed because the agencies consider SFIL as an entity that is linked to the French
government. These take into account a strong probability that the State will provide extraordinary support if necessary
because of the strategic importance of the public service responsibilities SFIL was entrusted with, State commitments and
the State’s influence on SFIL’s governance.

The close relationship between Caisse Francaise de Financement Local and the French State, due to its shareholding struc-
ture and support, but also to its mostly French cover pool, creates a link between the rating of obligations fonciéeres and the
rating of France for Fitch and S&P. Fitch’s rating may thus not be higher than the sovereign rating; otherwise Fitch would
apply an ultra-stressed rating scenario (an 80% default rate, with recoveries limited to 20%), making it necessary to have a
level of over-collateralization that would be incompatible with the profitability of the business model. S&P’s rating is limited
to one notch above that of France.

The rating of obligations fonciéres is also limited by S&P to one notch above the rating of SFIL, by reason of the non-
conformity of certain derivative contracts with the agency’s most recent methodological criteria (counterparties not rated by
S&P or absence of a replacement clause).

2. Highlights of 2015 and post-closing events

2.1 - THE COVERED BOND MARKET

The market for public sector issues of covered bonds in euros was active in 2015 with an offer in the primary market of
EUR 146 billion (compared with EUR 117 billion in 2014). This dynamic activity was in part bolstered by investors’ need to
replace a large volume of bonds that had reached maturity in 2015 (EUR 147 billion), but also by the active presence of issu-
ers outside the euro zone who found in this market favorable conditions for their long term financing. Canadian, Australian
and British issuers thus accounted for approximately 18% of the offering, although German and French issuers remained the
most dynamic with, overall, more than 30% of the offering.

A significant highlight of 2015 was the ECB’s move to pursue its covered bond purchase program as part of the implemen-
tation of its unconventional monetary policy. Generally, with outstandings in its purchase program as of December 31, 2015,
of almost EUR 144 billion, the Eurosystem demonstrated how important it considers this market, which it helped to build.

The intervention of the Eurosystem resulted in a long decline in primary and secondary spreads. Then, since the month of
September, the very abundant primary offering led investors to be more selective and demanding with regard to new issue
premiums compared with the secondary market. Spreads thus tended to widen in the last quarter of 2015.

In such an environment, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local launched its annual program of financing via obligations
fonciéres in good conditions of volume, spread and average life. This has made it possible to provide the long-term liquidity
required for the development of the commercial offers of La Banque Postale to the public sector in France and for ongoing
support of SFIL’s policy to reduce loan sensitivity.

In 2016, investor demand should remain naturally sustained as large volumes reach maturity (approximately EUR 150 billion).
In addition, the particularly favorable regulatory treatment in such an evolving environment (Basel Ill or Solvency 2) should
encourage investors to choose covered bonds when allocating assets. Nevertheless, the net offering is expected to be
almost nothing as in 2015.

2.2 - BUSINESS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCING IN 2015

As part of its main activity, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local refinances the loans granted by La Banque Postale to
French local governments and public hospitals. It has also been led to grant direct loans to these categories of customers
together with its operations to reduce its outstanding sensitive structured loans.

With an excellent first half, La Banque Postale granted loans totaling EUR 4.0 billion in 2015, up approximately 20% from
the previous year. Combined with the loans granted directly by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local, total production
rose to EUR 6.3 billion and confirmed the leading role of LBP/SFIL in refinancing the local public sector (largest lender in
terms of market share). For the fourth year of business, the organization that had been set up confirmed its efficiency after
a progressive and regular ramp-up.

SFIL continued to implement the policy that consists in reducing the sensitivity of the structured loans of Caisse Francaise
de Financement Local with a volume of EUR 1.4 billion of sensitive loans transformed into fixed rate contracts. Since the
beginning of 2013, the total amount of outstanding structured loans was reduced by more than 44%, from EUR 8.5 billion
to EUR 4.6 billion, and 300 customers definitively moved out of the “sensitive customer” category. Since the support funds
initiated by the French State are fully operational, more than 100 legal settlements have been signed. The efforts to reduce
sensitivity were generally accompanied by new loans of which EUR 1.7 billion were paid out in 2015.
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By the end of 2015, half of the borrowers with loans indexed on EUR/CHF had been totally cleared of any sensitivity, and
among them approximately 80% of small local governments and public hospitals that held such loans. At the same date,
92 borrowers, including 89 local governments, withdrew their suits. Litigation at the end of the year involved 131 plaintiffs
compared with 210 at the end of 2014.

2.3 - EVENTS AFFECTING THE RATINGS OF OBL/GAT/IONS FONCIERES

The ratings of the obligations foncieres issued by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local were not altered in 2015, in spite
of the application of major changes in S&P’s rating criteria and the downgrading of the rating of France by Moody’s.
As of December 31, 2015, the ratings were as follows: AA+ by Standard and Poor’s, Aaa by Moody’s and AA by Fitch.
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2.4 - LITIGATION RELATED TO STRUCTURED LOANS

9
In its portfolio, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has structured loans considered as sensitive (see 4.2.e.1 for definition) 8 T
that were granted to French customers of Dexia Credit Local. Certain of these customers initiated legal proceedings against g g
Dexia Credit Local, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local and/or SFIL. )
n'o
a. Decrease in outstanding sensitive structured loans E 0

The policy applied by SFIL since its creation at the beginning of 2013 made it possible to effect a significant reduction in the
size of the portfolio of sensitive structured loans of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local (see 2.2 and 4.2.e.2).

b. Creation of support funds contributing to the cost of sensitivity reduction

The two support funds created by the French government in 2013 and 2014 allow local governments and public hospitals
eligible for this arrangement to finance the cost of doing away with their structured loans. These funds were fully opera-
tional as of 2015. In the second half, notifications of the amounts of assistance provided by the funds began to be sent to
local governments and public hospitals that had requested such help. This made it possible to maintain a sustained pace of
sensitivity reduction and resulted in a major decrease in the number of law suits.

The intervention capacity of these funds was significantly increased in the first quarter of 2015 in order to cover the addi-
tional cost linked to the appreciation of the Swiss franc so that the early reimbursement penalties for which customers
holding loans indexed on the EUR/CHF exchange rate were still responsible would not be greater, after assistance from the
funds, than they would have been before the decision of the Swiss National Bank (SNB) in January 2015 to put an end to the
floor rate of exchange of the Swiss franc (CHF). The fund earmarked for local governments now totals EUR 3.0 billion and
the one for public hospitals EUR 400 million. Likewise, the ceiling of the assistance made available was significantly raised
from 45% to 75% of penalties owed by the most fragile local governments.

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local made a voluntary contribution to the local government support fund in the amount
of EUR 150 million and to the hospital support fund for EUR 38 million, including an additional contribution of EUR 20 mil-
lion to the hospital support fund decided in November 2015 in order to participate in the increase in these funds.

To prepare its 2013 and 2014 annual financial statements, as well as its 2015 half year financial statements, Caisse Francaise
de Financement Local took into account the hypothesis that the solutions announced by the government would in fact
rapidly be made available. It was notably a question of defining a legal base for other structured loan agreements con-
tracted by public sector entities (which took effect on July 30, 2014), creating a support fund for local governments and
then for public hospitals and finally the measures taken in 2015 to counter the major rise in the exchange value of the Swiss
franc decided by the Swiss National Bank so that the support funds would remain at least as attractive as before the SNB
decision for local governments and hospitals holding loans indexed on the EUR/CHF exchange rate (rise in the two support
funds and increase in the maximum rate of assistance granted).

c. Significant decline in the number of suits

As of December 31, 2015, the number of borrowers who had brought suit totaled 131, down from 210 as of December 31,
2014, a decline of 79 borrower-plaintiffs.

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

The law that created a legal basis to secure structured loan agreements subscribed by public sector entities took effect
on July 30, 2014. Since then, a bank can no longer be condemned for reasons linked to the annual rate of charge (TEG) of
structured loan agreements, in particular the formal absence of the TEG in the faxes which had preceded the signing of the
contract, which had motivated the decision of the Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre on February 8, 2013, concerning
the loans granted to the Département de la Seine-Saint-Denis.

The Département de la Seine-Saint-Denis which had initiated the first law suit to be decided, chose to put an end to the
litigation within the framework of a financial agreement that made it possible to eliminate its debt sensitivity.

General Information
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Since this first legal decision in February 2013, the Tribunal has decided a limited number of cases. Four decisions were
handed down in 2014 before the law creating a legal basis to secure structured loan agreements subscribed by public enti-
ties took effect, which Dexia Credit Local and Caisse Francaise de Financement Local appealed, and three in 2015.

Of the three decisions of the Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre handed down in 2015, a single decision condemned
jointly and separately Dexia Credit Local and Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local for the failure of Dexia Credit Local to
provide adequate information and sufficient warning when it marketed the loan. This same decision condemned the bor-
rower to reimburse Caisse Francaise de Financement Local for all the unpaid sums and to pay the contractual interest rate
for the remaining life of the contract.

As of December 31, 2015, all these decisions were being heard in appeal before the Cour d’appel de Versailles, except for litigation in
which a financial agreement had been reached. At the same time, 88 borrowers who had brought suit signed a financial settlement
agreement with SFIL, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local and Dexia Credit Local, thereby putting an end to legal litigation.

2.5 - TAX ASSESSMENT

In 2015, French tax authorities investigated the income declared and the tax paid for 2012 and 2013. Following the tax
assessment, the tax authorities expressed their disagreement with the tax treatment of the following two points: the tax-
ation in Ireland of the income from the Dublin branch of Dexia Municipal Agency, which has now been closed, and the
deductibility of provisions for non-performing loans.

In order to take into account the risk of an unfavorable outcome in these proceedings, Caisse Francaise de Financement
Local has recorded a provision for additional income tax in the amount of EUR 38 million. Nonetheless, Caisse Frangaise
de Financement Local does not agree with the position of the tax authorities and will appeal within the framework of legal
recourse allowed by current tax regulations.

3. Changes in main balance sheet items

EUR billions 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 Change Dec. 2015
value after currency swaps / Dec. 2014
Cover pool 63.7 62.3 60.0 3.7)%
Loans 53.2 51.6 50.5 QDH%
Securities 9.0 10.2 7.0 (31.4)%
Cash deposit in central bank 1.5 0.5 2.5 381.0%
Assets assigned in guarantee to Banque de France - - - -
Privileged debt 55.3 54.6 53.0 (2.9)%
Obligations fonciéeres* 52.8 52.2 51.6 (1.2)%
Cash collateral received 2.5 2.4 1.4 (40.6)%
Non-privileged debt 6.8 6.2 5.5 (11.3)%
Parent company 6.8 6.2 515) M.3)%
Banque de France - - - -
Equity IFRS (excluding unrealized gains and losses) 1.5 1.5 1.5 (2.4)%

* Including registered covered bonds

Caisse Francgaise de Financement Local’s cover pool is composed of loans and debt securities; it also includes the temporary
cash surplus, deposited at the Bangue de France or invested in short-term French sovereign securities for a total amount of
EUR 2.5 billion at the end of December 2015 versus EUR 2.1 billion as of the end of 2014.

As of December 31, 2015, the cover pool totaled EUR 60.0 billion, excluding accrued interest not yet due. As of December 31, 2014,
the total was EUR 62.3 billion; the decrease was therefore EUR 2.3 billion (-3.7%). At the end of December, no asset was excluded
from the cover pool in order to be sold to a bank in a repurchase agreement or assigned in guarantee to the Banque de France.
Outstanding debt benefiting from the legal privilege, including cash collateral received, was EUR 53.0 billion, which
decreased (-2.9%) in comparison with December 2014.

The debt contracted with the parent company totaled EUR 5.5 billion and does not benefit from the legal privilege. It mainly
corresponds to the financing of the over-collateralization of the cover pool, which is at a significantly higher level than the
amount required by regulators and the rating agencies.

4. Cover pool

4.1 - CHANGE IN ASSETS IN 2015

The net change in the cover pool as of December 31, 2015, corresponded to a decrease in assets in the amount of EUR 2.3
billion. This change is explained by the following items.
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EUR billions 2015 -
1- Acquisition of loans from La Banque Postale 3.4 5
Loans to the French public sector (vanilla loans in euros) 3.4 8
2- Reduction of loan sensitivity 1.7 a4
Sensitive structured loans removed 1.4) =
Refinancing loans (vanilla loans in euros) 1.4 GE)
New loans (vanilla loans in euros) 1.7 %
3- Amortization of portfolio of loans and securities (5.8) g
4- Early reimbursments (1.9) ]
5- Changes in treasury 0.4 >3
Change in short maturity securities investments (French sovereign) (1.6)
Change in Bangue de France cash deposit 2.0
6- Other changes 0.1 o
Other loans to the French public sector 01 -g v
Divestments 0.2) % %
Impairment and currency adjustment 0.0 E %
Net change in the cover pool 2.3) N 45
Oi +
T wn

In 2015, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local acquired a total of EUR 3.4 billion in loans to the French local public sector
originated by La Banque Postale.

In application of the policy of reduction of loan sensitivity in effect since the beginning of 2013, the operations conducted
by SFIL in 2015 made it possible to decrease outstanding loans considered as sensitive by EUR 1.4 billion by replacing them
with fixed rate loans. They were accompanied by new fixed rate loans in the amount of EUR 1.7 billion. After amortization,
outstanding loans considered as sensitive diminished by EUR 1.7 billion in 2015.

The natural amortization of the portfolio of loans and securities represented EUR 5.8 billion in 2015, and early reimburse-
ments EUR 1.9 billion (mostly the reimbursement of a loan granted to SFIL recognized as a replacement asset and the debt

tender offering to which Caisse de Financement Local brought part of its bonds issued by several Italian regions).

Divestments in 2015 totaled EUR 0.2 billion which were mainly attributable to a Swiss borrower.

French GAAP IFRS
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Available cash deposited at the Banque de France or invested in short-term French sovereign securities increased by
EUR 0.4 billion.

4.2 - OUTSTANDING ASSETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s pool of assets is exclusively composed of exposures on public sector entities, or
guaranteed by the same, and replacement assets (within the limits specified by current legislation).

EUR billions 12/31/2014 12/31/2015
Loans and bonds to the public sector 56.3 55.2
Treasury (sight accounts and short term investments) 21 2.5
Replacement assets 3.9 2.3
TOTAL 62.3 60.0

Surplus cash is deposited in an account opened by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local at the Banque de France or
invested in short-term French sovereign securities, respectively amounting to EUR 2.5 billion and zero as of December 31,
2015.

a. Public sector loans and securities (excluding replacement assets and treasury)

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

1. Geographic breakdown

French assets are predominant in the cover pool (80.2%), and their percentage is expected to rise in the future. Loans
acquired through La Banque Postale since 2013 accounted for almost EUR 6 billion as of December 31, 2015, representing
13.5% of French public sector loans included in the cover pool.

The other assets are managed in a run-off mode; they correspond to granular and geographically diversified exposures on
foreign public sector entities. They were originated in the past by subsidiaries of the Dexia Group.

General Information
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The relative proportion of the total assets can be broken down as follows.
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Exposures to Other countries as of December 31, 2015, are broken down by country in the section Bonds and public sector
loans, which is presented at the end of this management report.

2. Breakdown by type of counterparty

The portfolio of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is made up of the following items:

» for 82%, direct or indirect exposures on municipalities, departments or regions;

e for 11%, public hospitals;

e for 7%, sovereign exposures or commitments on other public sector entities (including public social housing).

Regions — 17 Public hospitals Departments

8.8% Regions
1.1% i iti
Departments o 5.0% Public sector entities

13.2% o gl N
, \ 1.0% States 16%  0.9%
‘ I \ States
7 6% ] 11%
2 Indirect exposures

0.1%
Public sector
entities

53.3% Municipalities

Municipalities 3.9%
. 0

Indirect exposures are composed of exposures guaranteed by public sector entities, most of which are local.
3. Securitizations
There are no securitization units in the cover pool of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local (since July 2013). Its obligations fon-

ciéres respect the conditions of eligibility for refinancing by the European Central Bank and the new CRR / CRD IV requirements.

4. Exposures on sovereign countries
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has stable and limited exposure to sovereign countries.

EUR millions Ratings ** 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 in % of the cover

pOOl KRk
France* AA/Aa2/AA 172 189 0.3%
United Kingdom AAA/AaT/AA+ 481 403 0.7%
Italy BBB-/Baa2/BBB+ 576 568 1.0%
TOTAL 1,229 1,160 2.1%

* Excluding treasury (Banque de France sight account and short-term sovereign bonds)
** S&P, Moody'’s and Fitch ratings at the publication date of this report
*** Excluding treasury and replacement assets
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Most of these exposures are concentrated on countries that benefit from very good ratings as of December 31, 2015, and
which guarantee these loans.

b. Replacement assets

Assets considered by law as replacement assets correspond to exposures on credit institutions benefiting of at least a
Step 1 rating, or a Step 2 rating when their remaining maturity does not exceed 100 days, and their total amount is limited
to 15% of debt benefiting from the legal privilege (obligations foncieres and registered covered bonds).

As of December 31, 2015, the replacement assets of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local were comprised of a long-term
loan to SFIL, which benefits from a Step 1 rating (rated AA by S&P, Aa3 by Moody’s and AA- by Fitch), as well as bank
account balances usually with a Step 2 rating. After SFIL’s early reimbursement in 2015 of a loan totaling EUR 1.1 billion,
replacement assets represented 4.7% of the privileged debt (obligations fonciéres and registered covered bonds) of Caisse
Francaise de Financement Local at the end of 2015.
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Replacement assets Country Issuer EUR millions 8 T

12/31/2014 12/31/2015 g2

Step 1 credit rating o 9

Loans to parent company France SFIL 3,912 2,339 (Dji) O

Step 2 credit rating L v
Bank account balances Other Other 14 4
TOTAL 3,926 2,343

c. Assets removed from the cover pool

Because of its status as a credit institution, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has access to refinancing operations
offered to banks by the Banque de France within the Eurosystem. In steering its cover pool and its over-collateralization
or in order to meet the need for temporary liquidity, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local may thus convert a portion of
its assets into cash. The loans or securities assigned in guarantee with the central bank in order to obtain financing on the
occasion of tenders organized by the Banque de France are then removed from the cover pool and replaced by the cash
thus obtained.

The same treatment would be applied to the assets in the cover pool if they were mobilized in interbank repurchase agree-
ments in the event of a need for liquidity.

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

In the last two fiscal years, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local mobilized or pledged no assets with the Banque de
France or a bank counterparty.

d. Yield

Article R.511-16-1 of the Monetary and Financial Code, introduced by the decree 2014-1315 of November 3, 2014, requires that
in their annual financial report, credit institutions publish the yield of their assets, defined as the ratio between the net result
and the total of their balance sheet. In 2015, this ratio equals - 0.10% in IFRS and - 0.05% in French GAAP.

e. Structured loans

1. Definition

Certain loans to French public sector entities in the cover pool of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local may be qualified

as structured loans. To define this notion, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local refers to the charter of good practices

signed by banks and local governments (the Gissler charter), which can be consulted on the Internet site of the French

Ministry of the Interior®. This document was signed on December 7, 2009, by several organizations that represent local gov-

ernments in France (Association des maires de France, Fédération des maires des villes moyennes, Association des petites

villes de France, Association des maires de grandes villes de France and Assemblée des communautés de France) as well
as certain banks.

Therefore, structured loans are defined as:

« all the loans with structures belonging to Gissler charter categories B to E;

« all the loans “outside the charter”, the commercialization of which is excluded by the charter, either because of their struc-
ture (leverage > 5, etc.), the underlying index(es) (foreign exchange, commodities, etc.), or the currency of the exposure
(loans denominated in CHF, JPY, etc.);

* to the exclusion of all the loans of which the structured phase is terminated and the interest rate is definitively a fixed rate
or a simple variable rate.

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

2. Structured loans and sensitive loans
Since the beginning of 2015, outstanding loans to the French public sector have risen, with an increase of EUR 3.8 billion in
non-structured loans (vanilla) and a decrease of EUR 2.3 billion in structured loans (see the definition above).

General Information

(D http.//www.interieur.gouv.fr/content/download/3021/30417/file/Charte_de_bonne_conduite_entre_les_etablissements_bancaires_et_les_collectivites._
territoriales.pdf
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EUR billions 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 % cover pool Number

of customers*
Sensitive loans not in the charter 3.2 2.4 3.9% 270
Sensitive loans (3E/4E/5E) 3.1 2.2 3.7% 309
SUBTOTAL SENSITIVE LOANS 6.3 4.6 7.6% 579
Other structured loans 5.2 4.6 77% 1,368
SUBTOTAL STRUCTURED LOANS 1.5 9.2 15.3% 1,947
Vanilla loans 30.6 34.4 57.3% 15,236
FRENCH PUBLIC SECTOR LOANS 42,1 43.6 72.8% 17,183
COVER POOL 62.3 60.0

* considering the customer in the category with its most highly structured loan.

As of December 31, 2015, outstanding structured loans on the balance sheet of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local rep-
resented EUR 9.2 billion (versus EUR 11.5 billion at the end of 2014).

The most structured loans according to the Gissler categories (3E, 4E and 5E as well as loans which the charter does not
allow to be marketed) may be qualified as “sensitive”. They are closely monitored and specific measures are taken to reduce
their sensitivity. They benefit from support from funds set up by the French government in order to allow customers to
convert sensitive loans into fixed rate vanilla loans. These loans represented a total of EUR 4.6 billion at the end of Decem-
ber 2015 compared with EUR 6.3 billion at the end of 2014. The EUR 1.7 billion decrease in these outstanding loans was
due for EUR 1.4 billion to proactive efforts to reduce the sensitivity of the outstanding loans and for EUR 0.3 billion to the
contractual amortization of these loans.

As of December 31, 2015, the most sensitive structured loans (loans not in the charter) represented 3.9% of the cover pool
and 270 customers. In particular, this portfolio included loans indexed on the EUR/CHF exchange rate. These loans concern
the following customer categories.

12/31/2014 12/31/2015

Sensitive loans not in the charter Amounts Number Amounts Number

EUR billions of customers EUR billions of customers
Municipalities with fewer than 10,000 inhabitants 0.2 76 0.1 50
Municipalities with more than 10,000 inhabitants 1.7 218 1.2 146
and groups of municipalities
Regions and departments 0.7 21 0.4 16
Public hospitals 0.5 48 ©.5 44
Other customers 0.1 15 0.1 14
TOTAL 3.2 378 2.3 270

Interest rates
The average rate paid by customers with sensitive loans in 2015 was 6.4% compared to 5.5% in 2014 (see below).

% 2014 2015
Decile 1 13.7 21.9
Decile 2 9.3 13.6
Decile 3 6.6 7.4
Decile 4 5.2 4.8
Decile 5 4.5 4.3
Decile 6 4.2 4.0
Decile 7 3.9 3.8
Decile 8 3.7 3.6
Decile 9 3.4 3
Decile 10 2.6 2.4
AVERAGE RATE PAID 5.5 6.4

The rates paid in 2015 decreased for deciles 4 to 10 (70% of borrowers). On the other hand, they increased for the first
three deciles.

The first two deciles concern borrowers holding contracted loans indexed on the EUR/CHF exchange rate. The interest rate
paid increased significantly in 2015. This was due to the considerable appreciation of the Swiss franc subsequent to the
decision of the Swiss National Bank in January 2015 to eliminate the floor rate for the Swiss franc.

To account for this new situation, the government decided on a major increase in the capacities of intervention in the sup-

port funds created in 2013 and 2014 to enable local governments and public hospitals eligible for such arrangements to
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finance the cost of putting an end to their structured loans. The objective was to cover the additional cost linked to the
appreciation of the Swiss franc so that the early reimbursement penalties for which the concerned borrowers were still
responsible would not be greater, after assistance from the funds, than they would have been before the decision of the
Swiss National Bank in January 2015 to put an end to the floor rate of exchange of its national currency, the Swiss franc
(CHF). The amounts allocated to the support funds totaled respectively EUR 3.0 billion for local governments and EUR 400
million for public hospitals. In addition, the ceiling on assistance was significantly increased for the most fragile local gov-
ernments, rising from 45% to 75% of the penalties due.

Of the 150 borrowers that made up the first two deciles in 2015, 80 were able to reduce the sensitivity of the loans concerned
since the payments of the 2015 high contractual interest rate. They no longer have any loans indexed on the EUR/CHF exchange
rate. The other borrowers who have not yet reduced the sensitivity of their loans indexed on the EUR/CHF exchange rate
may do so in 2016 and benefit from the two funds the government has introduced to put an end to the structured loans
(support funds for local governments and public hospitals).
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3. Reduction in loan sensitivity

9
The policy implemented by SFIL since 2013 to reduce the sensitivity of outstanding loans on the balance sheet of its sub- 8 c
sidiary Caisse Francaise de Financement Local was carried out in accordance with the schemas validated by the Supervisory g g
Board. The method used consists in reducing the sensitivity of loans definitively by converting them into fixed rate loans. )
To this end, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local may allocate if necessary new liquidity at cost for loans refinancing the %) E
early reimbursement penalties and for new loans granted at market price. E )

These measures made it possible to eliminate entirely the sensitivity of outstanding loans to 300 customers between SFIL’s
date of creation and December 31, 2015. The number of customers holding sensitive loans decreased from 879 to 579, and
the outstanding sensitive loans dropped from EUR 8.5 billion to EUR 4.6 billion.

The two support funds created by the government and now operational accelerated this process of reduction in loan sensi-
tivity in 2015 and to be continued in 2016, by helping local governments and public hospitals to finance the cost of disen-
gaging themselves from their structured loans. Since September 2015, the funds have begun to send to local governments
concerned a notification of the amount of financial assistance they will receive.

The capacity for intervention of these funds was significantly increased in the first quarter of 2015 in order to cover the
additional cost linked to the appreciation of the Swiss franc so that the early reimbursement penalties for which the con-
cerned customers were still responsible would not be greater, after assistance from the funds, than they would have been
before the decision of the Swiss National Bank in January 2015 to put an end to the floor rate of exchange of its national
currency, the Swiss franc (CHF). The fund earmarked for local governments now totals EUR 3.0 billion and the one for public
hospitals EUR 400 million. Likewise, the ceiling of the assistance made available was significantly raised for the most fragile
governments (from 45% to 75% of penalties due).

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

5. Debt benefiting from the legal privilege as of December 31, 2015

As of December 31, 2015, debt benefiting from the legal privilege is composed of obligations fonciéres and registered covered
bonds issued by Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local as well as of cash collateral received from counterparties in derivative
transactions.

EUR billions 12/31/2014 12/31/2015
Cash collateral received 2.4 1.4
Obligations fonciéres and registered covered bonds 52.2 51.6
TOTAL 54.6 53.0

5.1 - CHANGE IN CASH COLLATERAL IN 2015

Cash collateral received by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local decreased compared with the situation at the end of
December 2014. Its level stood at EUR 1.4 billion at the end of December 2015.

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

5.2 - CHANGE IN ISSUES IN 2015

Within the recurrent annual program of EUR 5 billion to EUR 7 billion, the issuance policy of Caisse Frangaise de Finance-
ment Local primarily aimed to construct a coherent yield curve in the euro market while keeping an eye on the good perfor-
mance of its benchmarks in the secondary market. The diversification of its sources of financing is necessary to achieve long
maturities coherent with its needs. This implies an active presence in the market of private placements within the framework
of the EMTN program or the issue of registered covered bonds.

General Information
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a. New issues in 2015

In 2015, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local reported a volume of issues of EUR 6.2 billion by enhancing its reference
curve with four new points, by increasing the amount of existing souches and by developing its presence in the private
placement segment. Caisse Francaise de Financement Local raised money on the primary market on four occasions for a
total amount of EUR 3.5 billion:

e a 20-year issue in January for EUR 500 million;

e an 8-year issue in April for EUR 1.0 billion;

* a 10-year issue in September for EUR 1.0 billion;

e a 7-year issue in October for EUR 1.0 billion.

At the same time, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local provided additional liquidity for several of its reference issues via
four taps in 2015 for a cumulated amount of EUR 600 million.

In addition to these public transactions, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local remained very active in the private place-
ment segment and especially with the registered covered bond format, thus making it possible to respond to investors’

search for long and very long maturities. Altogether EUR 2.1 billion was raised in this market segment.

The breakdown of new issues by public/private format and maturity is presented below.

2015 issues by format 2015 issues by maturity
EUR billions 3-5 years
Public l
issues: 4.1 21%
15 years
and more
Private
placements: 2.1 22%
of which RCB
0.7
37%
7-10 years
20%
10-15 years
2015 public issues 2015 public issues
by investor category by geographic zone
Benelux 2%  Italy 1%
United Kingdom ‘ Switzerland 1%
Banks 3% \ §F — Other 1%
24% Nordics —
3%
Asia
i
Central 6%
51% banks
1%
Insurance 52%
companies France
Germany & ——
14% Austria 31%
Asset
managers

b. Outstanding debt as of December 2015

Outstanding obligations fonciéres and registered covered bonds totaled EUR 51.6 billion in swapped value at the end of
December 2015, including the new issues of obligations foncieres for EUR 6.2 billion and after the amortization of issues
arriving at maturity for EUR 6.8 billion.

EUR billions - swapped value 2014 2015
Beginning of the year 52.8 52.2
Issues 4.0 6.2
Amortizations (3.7) (6.8)
Buyback (0.9) 0.0
END OF PERIOD 52.2 51.6
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As of December 31, 2015, issues can be broken down by currency as follows.
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Amortization of obligations fonciéres and registered covered bonds

EUR billions
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6. Changes in the over-collateralization ratio in 2015

The over-collateralization ratio, which is calculated on the basis of regulatory standards governing sociétés de crédit foncier,
is the ratio between the assets and the resources benefiting from the legal privilege. The legal minimum threshold is set at
105% and corresponds to the minimum level that Caisse Francaise de Financement Local had committed to maintain since
its creation.

In practice, the over-collateralization ratio is regularly higher than 105%. To maintain an adequate level of credit rating, a
level of over-collateralization of more than 5% may be required. This requirement depends on the method applied by each
of the rating agencies and on the new assets and liabilities on Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s balance sheet and
it may vary over time. Caisse Francaise de Financement Local takes these particular requirements into account in the man-
agement of its activity in order to make sure they are constantly met and strives to maintain its over-collateralization at a
relatively stable level, as can be seen in the following graph.

%
120% A

115.9
1151 14.3
15% 13.3
14.3
110% ns.4 12.5
105% - 108.3
]OO% 1 1 1 ]
Dec-12 Dec-13 Dec-14 Dec-15

- Regulatory over-collateralization ratio (ACPR) === Nominal over-collateralization ratio

Regulatory over-collateralization may differ fromm nominal over-collateralization. In fact, it is calculated on the basis of the
rules determined by the Autorité de contrdle prudentiel et de résolution (ACPR). In particular, these rules require different
weighting levels according to the assets. The assets in Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local’s cover pool are generally
weighted at 100%, except for certain units of securitization vehicles that were included in the cover pool of Caisse Francaise
de Financement Local until July 1, 2013 and which explain the greater part of the gap between the regulatory ratio and the
nominal ratio up until the sale of these securitization vehicles as of July 1, 2013.

Any assets that Caisse Francaise de Financement Local may have assigned in guarantee to borrow funds from the Banque
de France or any other banking institution would be excluded from the calculation of over-collateralization.

Over-collateralization may also be illustrated by the gap between the amortization curves of the assets and issues benefiting
from the privilege. The following graph presents the curves as of December 31, 2015.
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Amortization of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2015
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7. Change in debt that does not benefit from the legal privilege

The asset surplus (assets exceeding obligations fonciéres and registered covered bonds) and miscellaneous needs are
financed by equity and debt that does not benefit from the privilege of the law on sociétés de crédit foncier.

Such financing is obtained through the parent company. At the end of December 2015, the funds borrowed from SFIL within
the framework of the financing agreement were made up of different loans with maturities that could initially run from one
day to ten years with an Euribor or Eonia index.

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

Temporary financing may also be obtained from the Banque de France. These funds do not benefit from the privilege stip-
ulated in the law on sociétés de crédit foncier, but they are guaranteed by loans and securities assigned for this purpose
in the account of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local at the central bank. Caisse Francaise de Financement Local had
already used such financing in the past. Since the creation of SFIL, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has not con-
tracted any loans from the Banque de France, except when it used small sums to test the access procedure for such funding.
Neither did it contract any loans from credit institutions other than its parent company.

The change in financing that does not benefit from the legal privilege, excluding accrued interest not yet due, can be pre-
sented as follows.

EUR billions 12/31/2014 12/31/2015
Parent company 6.2 5.5
Banque de France - -
TOTAL 6.2 5.5

The decrease in debt not benefiting from the legal privilege was the result of the decrease of the cover pool and the change
in the level of over-collateralization in 2015.

8. Risk management

8.1 - CREDIT RISK

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

Credit risk represents the potential loss that Caisse Francaise de Financement Local may incur as the result of the decline
in a counterparty’s solvency.

a. Breakdown of exposures according to risk weighting

The quality of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s portfolio can also be seen in the weighting of its assets within the
framework of the calculation of the solvency ratio. SFIL chose the advanced method within the framework of the calculation
of the solvency ratio and capital adequacy. Banking regulator authorized the Company to use the advanced internal mod-
els developed for the consolidated calculation and reporting of capital requirements for credit risk. The calculation of such
weighting in particular combines the probability of default (PD) and loss given default (LGD) of the counterparty.

This enables Caisse Francaise de Financement Local to present an analysis of its exposure as of December 31, 2015, broken
down by risk weighting, such as used for the calculation of capital requirements for credit risk.

General Information
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Risk weighting of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s portfolio as of December 31, 2015

60.0%
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120%-50%] 39% e 12/31/2014
. 0

. 12/31/2015
> 50%
This analysis confirms the excellent quality of the assets in Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s portfolio, since only

3.6% of the portfolio has a weighting of more than 20%. The average risk weighting of the cover pool is 6.5%, versus 20%
for European local governments according to the Basel Il / lll standard method.

Combined with its high level of regulatory equity, the credit quality of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s assets ena-
bled the Company to post a phased-in Basel lll solvency ratio of 24.0% as of December 31, 2015, compared with 23.3% as of
December 31, 2014. The phased-in Common Equity Tier One ratio in Basel Il was 23.2% as of December 31, 2015.

b. Concentration by customer

The risk of concentration refers to exposure to a limited number of counterparties. Diversification can make it possible to
avoid this problem, and it is a risk management tool to protect from any loss in capital.

The table below presents the concentration on large counterparty portfolios (amounts and percentages of the portfolios).
It confirms the great diversity of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s portfolio of assets.

EUR millions % cover pool Top 5 Top 20 Top 100
2% 100% 100% 100%
French local authorities 80% 25‘7;;1 ?30:; 1@2?0/80
Non-French local authorities 18% 224463;3 5543;;0 9?:;)
ToTAL 100% o % s

As of December 31, 2015, all categories combined, the 20 largest exposures (excluding replacement assets and cash invest-
ments) represented 13.6% of the global cover pool (compared with 14.4% as of December 31, 2014). The largest exposure
accounted for only 1.0% of the cover pool and the twentieth exposure 0.4%.

c. Non-performing loans, litigious loans, provisions

Loans and most of the bonds held by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local are classified in the Loans and advances
portfolio according to IFRS, corresponding to its intention to hold them until maturity. They are valued at their historical
cost and, if necessary, are hedged for variations in the fair value of the risk covered (if there is a fair value hedge); they are
subject to provisions for impairment when there is a risk of non-payment.

In addition, collective impairment is calculated on the different portfolios of loans and advances. In the absence of specific
depreciation, it covers the risk of loss in value when there is an objective indication of the probability of loss in certain
segments of the portfolio or in other commitments involving outstanding loans at the end of the period. These losses are
estimated on the basis of each segment’s past performance and trends, each borrower’s rating, and the borrower’s eco-
nomic environment. To this end, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local uses a credit risk model based on an approach that
combines probabilities of default and loss given default. This model is regularly tested a posteriori.

The limited amount of non-performing loans observed indicates the portfolio’s overall high quality. Nonetheless, non-per-
forming loans have increased significantly in recent years. The reason for this rise lies in the growth of unpaid commitments
linked to litigation on sensitive structured loans, but also reflects a more conservative approach since the change in Caisse
Francaise de Financement Local’s shareholder. Thus, from 2013 to 2015, there was a rise in the number of customers the
Company classified in default. With several of them, there was already litigation concerning their structured loans and in
addition they encountered financial difficulties. For customers in default in terms of credit risk, the total amount of their
outstanding loans is classified as non-performing by contagion.
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Changes in the number of customers with non-performing loans and customers with part of their outstanding commitments

classified as litigious (past-due of sensitive loans) are presented below. %
Non-performing loans and litigious loans 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 8
Number of customers Non-performing Litigious = Non-performing Litigious 12
loans loans loans loans "E

Beginning of the year 47 53 90 52 1
New 53 13 29 14 qE)
Outgoing 10 14 45 31 )
END OF THE YEAR 90 52 74 35 =
>

Non-performing and litigious loans concerned 109 customers at the end of 2015 compared with 142 at the end of the previ-
ous year, representing a decrease of 33 customers. In 2015, seventeen litigious files were resolved after the payment of the
sums due and fourteen litigious files were reclassified as non-performing.

At the end of December 2015, non-performing and litigious loans totaled EUR 673 million, approximately 11% of the total

9
cover pool (EUR 60 billion). These loans can be broken down as follows. 8 c
¢ EUR 596 million in loans qualified as non-performing, corresponding to loans to customers with total unpaid amounts of g g
EUR 56 million (of which EUR 48 million were unpaid on structured loans); L o
* EUR 77 million in loans qualified as litigious, corresponding to unpaid interest on structured loans that are subject to litigation. %) E
T
Non-performing loans and litigious loans 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 B
EUR millions Non-performing Litigious = Non-performing Litigious
loans loans loans loans
FRANCE wn
(_/) +
State - - S = Y %
Regions - - = 1 L -
Departments - 4 - n a9
Groups of municipalities 85 30 104 42 f[ g
Municipalities 189 31 352 19 (O
Public sector entities 122 2 140 4 6 'g
TOTAL 396 67 596 77 55
s C
Wi

The total amount of provisions at the end of December 2015 is presented in the following table.

EUR millions 12/31/2014 12/31/2015
Specific impairment 47 66
Collective impairment 63 63
TOTAL 110 129

Specific provisions for non-performing loans increased by EUR 19 million in 2015. This rise corresponds, for an amount of
EUR +26 million, to the mandatory impairment of unpaid or accrued interest on non-performing loans, the outstanding amount
of which increased, and for EUR -7 million to the reversal of provisions on the nominal amount of non-performing loans.

The review of the portfolio and its associated risks did not entail any change in collective impairment
The provisions were determined by taking into account the comprehensive set of measures decided by the French govern-
ment to provide a solution to the problem of structured loans. The hypotheses adopted are presented in section 2.3 of this

management report.

At the end of December 2015, the cost of risk, retreated from the contribution to the support fund for public hospitals,
presented a gain of EUR 7 million, reflecting a reversal on specific impairment.

d. Bank counterparty risk

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

Counterparty risk refers to the risk of loss on an exposure linked to the default of a counterparty. It is naturally in function
of the amount of the exposure, the probability of default on the part of the counterparty, and the portion of the loan that
cannot be recovered in the event of default.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local holds three types of exposure to banks:

* loans to SFIL, the parent company of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local, which are considered as replacement assets
in the amount of EUR 2.3 billion (see 4.2.b);

* bank account balances in euros and other currencies, representing EUR 4 million, excluding cash deposited on the Banque
de France account;

« its derivative contracts, entered into within the framework of its management of interest rate and foreign exchange risks.

General Information

All of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s derivative operations are conducted within the framework of standard ISDA
or FBF (Fédération bancaire francaise) contracts with major international banks. These contracts have particular character-
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istics, since they must meet the standards set by rating agencies for sociétés de crédit foncier (and other issuers of covered
bonds). These interest rate and currency swaps all benefit from the same legal privilege as obligations foncieres. For this
reason, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local does not pay its derivative counterparties any collateral, whereas they have
to pay Caisse Francaise de Financement Local unless they benefit from the agencies’ highest short-term rating.

At the end of December 2015, Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local was exposed (positive fair value of the swaps) on 12
banking counterparties. 11 of these paid cash collateral of EUR 1.4 billion, offsetting total exposure, and one paid no collateral

because of its very good short-term rating. This counterparty represented a limited exposure (EUR 9 million).

All derivative exposures as of December 31, 2015, are listed below.

EUR billions Short-term Long-term % of long-term Mark to Market Collateral Number of

notional amounts notional amounts  notional amounts - + received counterparties
SFIL 0.0 21.5 22.5% 2.7) - - 1
Other counterparties 59.7 74.2 77.5% (3.8) 1.4 1.4 28
TOTAL 59.7 95.7 100.0% (6.5) 1.4 1.4 29

The swaps negotiated with external counterparties represented 77.5% of outstanding long-term swaps and those signed with
SFIL 22.5%. Long-term swaps signed with the five largest counterparties represented a total of 35.6% of notional amounts.

Short-term swaps (Eonia) were all contracted with external counterparties.

8.2 - OTHER BALANCE SHEET RISKS

a. Interest rate risk

1. Definition
Interest rate risk corresponds to the risk of financial loss that may occur in the case of interest rate fluctuations in the mar-
ket that would lead to a loss in value of certain items on the bank’s balance sheet (or off-balance sheet).

Three types of interest rate risk can be distinguished:

e the risk related to long-term interest rates, which results from the gap in volume and maturity between the fixed rate
assets and liabilities, the initial maturity of which is greater than a year;

* the basis risk, which results from the gap that may exist in the backing of assets and liabilities with a floating rate in the
same currency but with different tenors;

* the fixed rate risk, which results from the variation in the rate of an asset or a liability with a floating interest rate pre-fixed
over the period in which the adjustable index is fixed.

These risks are generally hedged using derivative instruments.

2. Hedging strategy
The policy applied by Caisse Francaise de Financement Local makes it possible to be protected from interest rate risk
because any acquisition of assets or issue of liabilities is systematically hedged in a variable rate from the beginning.

There are two steps in the hedging process of interest rate risk.

* In the first stage, all the assets and the liabilities benefiting from the privilege which do not naturally have a floating rate
are hedged against Euribor until maturity as soon as they are recorded on the balance sheet. In practice, acquisitions of
loan portfolios (in which the unit amount is generally small) are usually macro-hedged whereas loans granted individually
or bond issues are micro-hedged. Hedging of assets is more often obtained in using interest rate swaps, but the same
effect may be obtained whenever possible by the cancelation of liability swaps.

* In the second stage, Euribor lending and borrowing flows (naturally or after hedges) are swapped against Eonia generally
over a sliding period of two years in order to eliminate the basis risk generated by differences in the tenor (Eurbor 1, 3,
6 or 12 months) and the fixing risk due to refixing dates of reference indices that differ for the assets and the liabilities.

Non-privileged debt is not concerned by these hedging operations. In fact, debt contracted by Caisse Francaise de Finance-
ment Local with its shareholder to finance over-collateralization is borrowed either directly with a monetary index and does
not need to be swapped, or with a Euribor index and thus finances assets also indexed on Euribor. Short-term debt owed
the Bangue de France with a fixed rate (if any) is not hedged, but finances fixed rate assets.

3. Limits on interest rate risk

The sensitivity of residual positions that remain after the two levels of hedging is monitored carefully and kept within
strict limits. Limits on interest rate risk were calibrated in order to guarantee, with 99% probability, a maximum one year
loss of less than EUR 80 million in the event of a change in interest rates of 200 basis point (bp), equivalent to a maxi-
mum loss set at EUR 40 million (3% of equity) for a fluctuation in interest rates of 100 bp. This calibration was based on
a directional shift in rates corresponding to a 1% probability at one year observed over the period 2005-2013, which was
approximately 200 bp. A set of three limits makes it possible to have a grasp of the slope risk, as well as the directional
risk. These limits control the sensitivity of the fixed rate risk and together guarantee the maximum losses mentioned
above. The limits are as follows.
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Limiting directional risk

Limiting the slope risk
The slope risk benefits from specific limits applied to four segments of maturity on the yield curve (short, medium, long
and very long).

The limit in total sensitivity for a shift in rates of 100 bp of all points in the yield curve is set at EUR 25 million. The meas- %
urement of sensitivity at the end of each quarter is presented below. [}
Q

Directional risk 9_:,
Total sensitivity GC)
EUR millions, end of quarter Limit 1Q 2015 2Q 2015 3Q 2015 4Q 2015 £
[)

SENSITIVITY 25.0 4.9 10.5 0.0 0.1 o))
©

C

©

>

e Limiting the slope risk between two points of maturity distant from one another on the curve: sensitivity to a shift in rates
of 100 bp is limited to EUR 10 million by segment of maturity. Measurement of sensitivity at the end of each quarter is

8 4,
presented below. 2e
o O
Risk of slope between two distant points on the rate curve E %
Sum of sensitivities n 45
EUR millions, end of quarter Limit 1Q 2015 2Q 2015 3Q 2015 4Q 2015 E 0
Short term 10.0 0.3 2.0 3.5 0.6 —
Medium term 10.0 5.1 5.6 (0.8) (0.4)
Long term 10.0 6.8 6.3 (0.5) 1.9
Very long term 10.0 (7.3) (3.4) (2.2) (2.0)

e Limiting the slope risk between two points of maturity close to one another on the curve: in each segment, the sum
in absolute value of the sensitivities of points on the yield curve (grouped in several points of reference) is limited to
EUR 20 million per segment. Measurement of sensitivity at the end of each quarter is presented below.

Risk of slope between two close points on the rate curve
Sum of sensitivities in absolute value
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EUR millions, end of quarter Limit 1Q 2015 2Q 2015 3Q 2015 4Q 2015
Short term 20.0 1.0 7.6 52 6.2
Medium term 20.0 7.8 13.4 8.4 4.5
Long term 20.0 4.1 8.9 4.9 3.7
Very long term 20.0 7.3 7.6 3.8 3.8

4. Outstanding derivatives

The strategies employed to hedge interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk are illustrated by notional outstanding swaps
analyzed in the following table, broken down between external counterparties and an internal counterparty (SFIL), as of
December 31, 2015.
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Breakdown of outstanding swaps Notional * SFIL Other counterparties %

EUR billions % % o

Euribor against Eonia Uj)

Macro-hedges 59.7 0.0% 100.0% o

TOTAL SHORT-TERM SWAPS 59.7 0.0% 100.0% £

=

Fixed rate swaps against Euribor %

Micro-hedges on obligations fonciéres 45.7 17.0% 83.0% >

Micro-hedges on loans and debt securities 241 13.2% 86.8% "@

Macro-hedges on loans 18.5 35.3% 64.7% %

Subtotal 88.3 19.8% 80.2% °

Currency swaps S

Micro-hedges on obligations fonciéres 4.8 56.0% 44.0% E

C

Micro-hedges on loans 1.7 52.6% 47.4% w0
Micro-hedges on debt securities 0.9 51.8% 48.2%
Subtotal 7.4 54.7% 45.3%
TOTAL LONG-TERM SWAPS 95.7 22.5% 77.5%

* Absolute value
b. Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risk is defined as the risk of volatility in result, be it observed or latent, linked to a change in the
exchange rate of currencies vis-a-vis a reference currency. The reference currency of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local
is the euro. The foreign exchange risk reflects a change in the value of assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the euro by reason of fluctuations of this same currency vis-a-vis the euro.

General Information
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Its risk management policy consists in not taking any foreign exchange risk: all issues and assets denominated in foreign
currencies are hedged as soon as they are recognized on the balance sheet and until their final due date, by a cross-cur-
rency swap against the euro. Floating rate exposures generated by this management policy are incorporated into interest
rate risk management.

c. Transformation risk
The transformation risk arises from the fact that the assets are financed in part by resources with a different maturity.

1. Duration gap
The difference in maturity or amortization profile between the assets and the liabilities may create a liquidity risk.

With the interest rate risk under control as presented above, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local manages the congru-
ence of maturities between the assets and the liabilities by maintaining the duration gap between the assets and the liabil-
ities within a maximum limit of three years.

From the point of view of the method, since both the assets and the resources benefiting from the privilege have a floating
rate after swaps, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s balance sheet appears to indicate that there is a single loan vis-a-
vis a single borrowing. Duration (D) is calculated as follows: “sum of the periods weighted by the cash flows and discounted
at the interest rate of the zero coupon curve for period (t) / sum of the cash flows discounted at the interest rate of the
zero coupon curve for period (t)”.

1 M-

T
D=Z[(t><CFt)/(1+st)t]/ [CFt/ (+stY]

t=1 t=1
The duration gap between the assets and the liabilities is closely monitored since it is sensitive to fluctuations in interest
rates used to calculate the net present value and to significant changes in assets and liabilities.

The management policy of Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local is a commitment not to exceed three years for the dura-
tion gap between the assets in the cover pool and the resources benefiting from the privilege. In practice, the actual dura-
tion gap is maintained below this limit, and was significantly reduced in the period, as can be seen in the following table.

Duration (in years) 12/31/2014 3/31/2015 6/30/2015 9/30/2015 12/31/2015
Cover pool 7.24 7.36 7.08 7.41 717
Privileged liabilities 5.40 5.61 5.40 5.70 5.52
Gap in asset-liability duration 1.84 1.75 1.68 1.71 1.64
Duration gap limit 3 3 3 3 3

2. Weighted average life gap

Changes in the gap in weighted average life can differ from the changes in the gap in duration over the same period, for the
evolution in the duration gap is partly attributable to movements in the interest rate curve. The gap in the weighted average
life of the cover pool and the liabilities benefiting from the legal privilege is presented below.

Weighted average life (in years) 12/31/2014 3/31/2015 6/30/2015 9/30/2015 12/31/2015
Cover pool 7.84 7.71 7.81 8.06 7.84
Privileged liabilities 5.71 5.83 5.86 6.11 5.95
Gap in asset-liability weighted average life 213 1.88 1.95 1.94 1.89

3. Regulatory limit

The regulatory changes in May 2014 imposed a limit of one and a half years on the weighted average life gap between the
cover pool, considered on the basis of the minimum amount required to satisfy the legal over-collateralization ratio of 105%
and the resources benefiting from the privilege. Caisse Francaise de Financement Local respects this limit.

d. Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk can be defined as the risk that Caisse Francaise de Financement Local may not be able to settle privileged
debt commitments at the due date owing to the fact that there is too great a gap between the reimbursement of the assets
and the reimbursement of its privileged resources.

By limiting the duration gap between assets and resources to three years, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local maintains
control over its future needs for liquidity.
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To meet its liquidity needs, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local makes use of the following resources:

« first of all, the cash flows from the amortization of the assets in the cover pool or from the issue of new obligations fon-
ciéres to replace those that arrive at maturity and the reimbursement of which creates the need for liquidity;

« funds granted by its parent company. Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has at its disposal in any case the support
of its parent company formalized in a “declaration of support” (the full text is incorporated into the EMTN program and
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s annual financial report). This debt is contracted with SFIL through financing
agreements between Caisse Francaise de Financement Local and its parent company.

* pledges of assets with the central bank or with other banks through repurchase agreements.

Because of the nature of the assets that make up its cover pool, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has a large number
of assets that are directly eligible for refinancing by the central bank, so that its need for cash can be easily covered.
Since it is a credit institution, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local can post these eligible assets:
- either by using, in its own name, the refinancing possibilities offered by the European Central Bank through the Banque
de France;
- or by using interbank financing in the form of repurchase agreements.
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Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has its own autonomous resources that enable it to cover its temporary liquidity g g
needs, even in the event of the default of its parent company, since any legal proceedings engaged for the bankruptcy or L o
liguidation of its parent company cannot be extended to Caisse Francaise de Financement Local (article L.513-20 of the %) E
Monetary and Financial Code). E wn

The maximum cumulated liquidity that Caisse Francaise de Financement Local might need in the future, in a run-off sit-
uation and if it were not able to issue new obligations fonciéeres, is less than the maximum financing already occasionally
obtained from the Bangue de France in the past. This need is also less than Caisse Francaise de Financement Local’s capac-
ity to obtain refinancing from the Banque de France, measured by the amount of eligible assets after haircuts that would be
available respecting the level of over-collateralization required by the regulation.

The forecast of cumulative liquidity needs, and eligible assets to cover those needs as defined above, is presented in the
following graph.

EUR billions

n =

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements
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In addition, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local manages its liquidity risk by means of the following three indicators:

e the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR);

* the duration gap between the assets and the resources benefiting from the legal privilege (limited to three years), which
is published quarterly, and the new regulatory limit on the weighted average life gap;

» projected cash needs over the next 180 days: Caisse Francaise de Financement Local ensures that at any time, its cash
needs over a period of 180 days are covered by replacement assets and assets eligible for credit operations with the
Banque de France. Cash needs are defined as repayments of obligations fonciéres and RCB, of debt that does not benefit
from the legal privilege and forecasts of repayment of the cash collateral received, after deduction of cash flows from
amortization of assets. This forecast is published quarterly in the Asset Quality Report and is presented below.

EUR billions
6 —

1\ —

Liquidity need
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Liquidity surplus
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I Cumulated need (+) or surplus (-) over 180 days - Assets eligible for the Banque de France, after haircut,

in compliance with a 5% over-collateralization calculated
on a regulatory basis, including liquidity surplus

The movements observed for the next 180 days correspond to cash flows from amortization of obligations fonciéres, cash
collateral, non-privileged liabilities and assets. As of December 2015, the liquidity situation showed a surplus over the whole
period.

8.3. MANAGEMENT OF OTHER RISKS

a. Legal risks

Legal risk is the risk of any litigation with a counterparty resulting from any misunderstanding, lack or insufficiency that may
be attributed to the Company in the exercise of its activities.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local is involved in no litigation or suit other than those described in the year’s highlights
(2.4 and 2.5).

b. Operational risks and permanent control

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss due to an inadequacy or lack in the bank’s procedures (absent or incom-
plete analysis or control, procedures not secured), in its staff (errors, bad intention and fraud), in internal systems (computer
crash, etc.) or external risks (flood, fire, etc.).

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local delegates to SFIL the functions of internal control, within the framework of a manage-

ment agreement. The management processes applied to operational risks and permanent control are described in the section
of the 2015 annual financial report entitled Supplemental information - Report of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
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c. Security and means of payment

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local does not make any means of payment available to its customers.

9. Commitments granted - commitments received

Commitments granted as of December 31, 2015, are mainly comprised of the portion of loans not yet paid out of loans
granted to French local governments in the amount of EUR 0.3 billion and financing offers granted to SFIL for the refinanc-
ing of the export credit business in the amount of EUR 0.6 billion.
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Commitments received were principally:

* the authorized overdraft in the current account as stipulated in the financing agreement signed with SFIL for EUR 50 million;

* the pledge of securities to the benefit of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local in guarantee of the reimbursement of
loans granted to the parent company, SFIL, in the amount of EUR 2.3 billion;

©
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* guarantees received on loans to customers for EUR 6.1 billion. 2c
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10. Payment deadlines e
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L

In application of articles L.441-6-1 and D.441-4 of the Code of Commerce, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local must pub-
lish every year a breakdown of the balance of the monies it owes to suppliers by due date.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has a very limited number of direct suppliers, since its management is contractually
entrusted to its parent company, in conformity with article L.513-15 of the Monetary and Financial Code. Caisse Francaise
de Financement Local usually settles its bills as soon as they are recorded, and the balance of monies owed to suppliers is
theoretically always zero.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, all supplier accounts were settled. The only supplier debt recorded corresponded to
invoices not yet received.

11. Research and development

Since the Company exercises no activity in research and development, no data related to this activity is mentioned in the
financial statements.

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

12. Non-tax-deductible charges and expense

In accordance with article 223 (4) of the French General Tax Code, no non-deductible expense or charge referred to in arti-
cle 39-4 of the General Tax Code was made by the Company during the year.

General operating expenses considered as non-deductible following a definitive tax assessment (article 223 (5), article 39-5
and 54 (4) of the General Tax Code) are therefore zero given the absence of any recent tax adjustment.

13. Income for the year
13.1 - INCOME ACCORDING TO IFRS

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local publishes its financial statements according to IFRS, as adopted by the European
Commission in order to allow for a better understanding and a better comparability of its financial statements by interna-
tional investors.

Since the year 2013, the application of IFRS 13 to the hedging of the balance sheet items by derivatives produces very sig-
nificant effects that make it difficult to compare net banking income from one period to another.

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures
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The income statement for 2015 is presented in a synthetic form as follows.

IFRS 2013 2014 2015 Change
EUR millions 2015/2014
Interest margin 141 103 ns 12%
Net commissions 24) (28) (26)
Net result of assets at fair value no a4) (32)
Net result of financial assets available for sale 6 8 2)

Other income and expense - - -

NET BANKING INCOME 242 69 55! (20)%
General operating expenses (74) (90) (90)
Taxes (5) 3 (6)
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE COST OF RISK 163 (24) 41 (72)%
Cost of risk 178) 18) 4)
PRE-TAX INCOME (15) (42) (55) 3ND%
Income tax 18 13 @n
NET INCOME 3 (29) (76) (162)%

a. Income restated excluding non-recurring events

Income was strongly influenced by the following factors that should be mentioned in this analysis:

« adjustments in fair value concerning interest rate risk hedges. The application of these changes in accounting standards
or methods is a source of volatility in Net banking income. The impact was very positive in 2013 and negative in 2014 and
2015, as can be seen in the following table.

EUR millions 2013 2014 2015
Fair value adjustments on interest rate hedging ne 24) (36)

the contribution to the support funds created by the French State to solve the problem of sensitive structured loans. This
contribution was totally covered by a provision once Caisse Francaise de Financement Local decided to contribute to
these funds (local governments in 2013, hospitals in 2014 and increase in hospital funds in 2015); the impact on the Cost
of risk is presented below.

EUR millions 2013 2014 2015
Contribution to support funds for sensitive structured loans (150) a8) 20)

* the provision covering the risk of additional tax to pay within the framework of the tax assessment. This provision was
recorded in the 2015 financial statements for EUR 38 million.

Corrected for these items, Net banking income went from EUR +93 million in 2014 to EUR +91 million in 2015, and Net

income was stable at EUR -1 million.

b. Net banking income
Net banking income decreased as compared with 2014, from EUR 69 million to EUR 55 million.

As indicated above, since 2013, fair value adjustments have an effect on existing hedging transactions the Company uses
to cover its interest rate and foreign exchange risks. These adjustments impacted asymmetrically the hedged item and its
hedging derivative, although the Company applies strict financial hedging rules, and this factor was therefore the cause of
major changes in Net banking income:

« fair value adjustments introduced by the new standard IFRS 13: Credit Value Adjustment / Debit Value Adjustment (CVA /
DVA), Funding Value Adjustment (FVA);

fair value adjustment of collateralized derivatives: to account for developments in French banks' best practices, the Com-
pany chose a valuation against Eonia for derivatives for which it receives cash collateral while the other derivatives remain
valued against Euribor. This change in the valuation of hedging derivatives, whereas the valuation of hedged items is not
modified, creates inefficiency in hedging relations;

evaluation of the hedged risk of certain assets and liabilities that are swapped against an Euribor index different from that
in the reference curve that serves to value instruments on the balance sheet. The value of the derivative and that of the
hedged item follow independent trends, thereby creating hedging inefficiency in accounting.

These adjustments in the accounting value are recorded in the income statement mainly in the item Net result of assets at fair value.

Corrected for these items, Net banking income totaled EUR +91 million in 2015, down EUR 2 million from 2014.
The Interest margin rose EUR 12 million. This margin corresponds to the difference between income from the assets and the

cost of the liabilities (with comprehensive hedging of interest rate and foreign exchange risks). The increase in the margin
was mainly due to regular improvement in financing conditions and the good level of commercial margins.
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There was a EUR 2 million decline in Net commissions paid, which principally correspond to billing by SFIL within the frame-
work of its management agreement as defined in article L.513-15 of the Monetary and Financial Code.

Finally, the item Net result of financial assets available for sale was down EUR 10 million from 2014. This item mainly repre-
sents the results on early reimbursements of loans or issues, and if such is the case, on sales of portfolio securities.

c. Other items

Most of the General operating expenses are made up of billing by the parent company for the operational management of
the Company. The expenses were stable compared with 2014. On the other hand, the increase in taxes was the result of the
contribution of EUR 5 million for the first time to the Single Resolution Fund created by European regulators. This sum is
not deductible from corporate income tax in France.
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The Cost of risk was impacted by accounting for the voluntary contributions of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local to
the support funds for sensitive structured loans in the amount of EUR 18 million in 2014 (public hospital fund) and EUR 20

D
million in 2015 (increased capacity of intervention for the hospital fund). Excluding provisions for these contributions, the 8 c
Cost of risk can be attributed to efforts to bolster specific and collective provisions in 2014 in the amount of EUR 26 mil- g g
lion and in 2015 for EUR 19 million (cf. 8.1.c Non-performing loans, litigious loans, provisions) of which respectively zero and L o
EUR 6 million were recorded in the Cost of risk. The change in provisions which is not registered in the Cost of Risk is rec- %) E
ognized in Net banking income and corresponds to the neutralization of non-performing loan interest. E wn

Income tax totaled EUR -21 million in 2015. This included the provision for tax risk for EUR 38 million (see 2.5 Tax assess-
ment) and the effect of the non-deductibility of the contribution to the Single Resolution Fund.

Net income totaled EUR -76 million in 2015 compared with EUR -29 million in 2014. Corrected for adjustments in fair value,
extraordinary contributions to support funds and the provision for tax risk, net income was stable at EUR -1 million.

13.2 - INCOME ACCORDING TO FRENCH GAAP

Net income for the year 2015 is presented below in a synthetic manner.

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

French GAAP 2013 2014 2015 Change 2015
EUR millions / 2014
Interest margin 160 158 186 18%
Net commissions 24) (28) (26)

Provisions and income on trading portfolio - - -
Provisions and income on securities 41 2) 21

Other income and expense . - -

NET BANKING INCOME 177 128 181 41%
General operating expenses 74) (90) (90)
Taxes (5) 3 (6)
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE COST OF RISK 98 35 85 143%
Cost of risk (183) 18) 4)
OPERATING INCOME (85) 17 71 318%
Income (loss) on fixed assets - - 5)
Income tax 5) 9 (96)
Regulated provision on long- and medium- term loans 70 - -
NET INCOME (20) 8 (30) (475)%

The Company’s business is piloted according to IFRS (as adopted by the European Commission). The French GAAP financial
statements are published in accordance with legal requirements and serve as a base to calculate income subject to corpo-
rate income tax.

Readers are reminded that Caisse Francaise de Financement Local applies an accounting treatment to early loan reimburse-
ment penalties and swap unwinding payments that is in compliance with the tax treatment specified by government tax
authorities. This accounting method introduces accelerated recognition of income compared with systematic amortization.
These penalties and payments are generated by early reimbursements, but also by renegotiations, which generally accom-
pany active debt management by borrowers, as well as swaps of liabilities which are canceled in order to back these liabili-
ties by a portfolio of acquired loans. The methods employed, which have not changed in the last three years, are described
in the rules of presentation and evaluation of the financial statements in the notes to the financial statements in the sections
entitled Customer loans, Micro-hedge transactions and Macro-hedge transactions.

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

Net banking income was up 41%, or EUR 53 million, as compared with the same period in 2014, rising from EUR 128 million
to EUR 181 million.
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This trend was mainly due to the Interest margin for EUR +28 million and the item Provisions and income on placement
portfolio, which reported a change of EUR +23 million (reversal of provisions in 2015, reflecting the improvement of the
market value of placement securities).

The Interest margin corresponds to the difference between income from the assets and the cost of the liabilities (with com-
prehensive hedging of interest rate and foreign exchange risks). The Interest margin varies differently when it is presented
in IFRS (economic presentation) or in French GAAP (tax presentation). The way debt management is accounted for is, in
certain cases, asymmetrical in French GAAP (see above), a fact that can make it difficult to interpret the changes, especially
the years in which local government debt management (including reduction in loan sensitivity) is very active.

In 2015, the Interest margin rose more in French GAAP than in IFRS financial statements.

Most of the General operating expenses are made up of billing by the parent company for the operational management of
the Company. These general expenses were stable compared with 2014. On the other hand, the increased taxes reflected
the EUR 5 million contribution, for the first time, to the Single Resolution Fund created by European regulators. This item is
not deductible from the calculation of corporate income tax.

The Cost of risk was impacted by accounting for the voluntary contributions of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local to
the support funds for sensitive structured loans in the amount of EUR 18 million in 2014 (public hospital fund) and EUR 20
million in 2015 (increased capacity of intervention for the hospital fund). Excluding provisions for these contributions, the
Cost of risk can be attributed to efforts to bolster specific and collective provisions in 2014 in the amount of EUR 26 mil-
lion and in 2015 for EUR 19 million (cf. 8.1.c Non-performing loans, litigious loans, provisions) of which respectively zero and
EUR 6 million were recorded in the Cost of risk. The change in provisions which is not registered in the Cost of Risk is rec-
ognized in net banking income and corresponds to the neutralization of non-performing loan interest.

Income tax totaled EUR -96 million in 2015. This item takes account of the impact of the non-deductibility of the contribu-
tion to the Single Resolution Fund, and especially of a provision for tax risk in the amount of EUR 86 million (the difference
with the amount covered by a provision for this purpose in IFRS accounts for EUR 38 million, was due to the non-recogni-
tion of deferred taxes in French GAAP accounts).

Net income was down from EUR +8 million to EUR -30 million. The loss was due to the provision for tax risk mentioned
above.

14. Proposed allocation of net income

In previous years, Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local distributed the following dividends.

Year of distribution Distributed from the year’s income Amount Amount per Number
distributed share of shares
EUR EUR
2000 1999 3,600,000 1.20 3,000,000
2001 2000 = - 4,000,000
2002 2001 = - 4,500,000
2003 2002 = - 4,500,000
2004 2003 120,000,000 24.00 5,000,000
2005 2004 62,000,000 10.00 6,200,000
2006 2005 84,320,000 12.40 6,800,000
2007 2006 116,280,000 15.30 7,600,000
2008 2007 70,080,000 8.00 8,760,000
2009 2008 113,520,000 12.00 9,460,000
2010 2009 133,560,000 12.60 10,600,000
201 2010 110,075,000 9.25 11,900,000
2012 201 15,080,000 1.16 13,000,000
2013 2012 = - 13,150,000
2014 2013 = - 13,150,000
2015 2014 = - 13,150,000
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The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting will be asked not to distribute a dividend and to vote a resolution to allocate net

. . 4
income as follows (in euros). 5
(0X

Net income for the year 2015 (30,262,597.76) &)
Allocated to the legal reserve (5%) - -
C

Income available (30,262,597.76) GE)
Prior retained earnings 25,339,608.95 %
Retained earnings after allocation (4,922,988.81) g
©

>

15. Outlook for 2016

For the year 2016, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local and its parent company SFIL aim to:
« confirm their role as a major player in the market for loans to French local government and public hospital within the

©
= n
framework of cooperation with La Banque Postale (leader in this market in 2015); 8 c
* give concrete shape to their new role in refinancing banks that work with French exporters for their large export credits. g g
o
In addition to these two responsibilities entrusted by the French State, within an operating framework approved by the Euro- %) E
pean Commission, there is also the objective to reduce the volume of sensitive structured loans (already cut in half since E wn

the beginning of 2013). This activity is generally accompanied by new loans granted to the local governments concerned.

Caisse Francaise de Financement Local will thus see new loans enter its portfolio of assets in 2016. They represent expo-
sures on the French local public sector and the French State.

To cover its financing needs, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local plan to issue approximately EUR 7.0 billion of obligations
fonciéres in 2016 with a long average maturity adapted to the profile of the new assets. Its program will mainly be developed
through several benchmark issues in euros and private placements adapted to the needs of its large investor base.

, - - French GAAP IFRS
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Bonds and public sector loans as of December 31, 2015

EUR millions

COUNTRY

France

State

Banque de France

Regions

Departments

Municipalities

Groups of municipalities

Public sector entities:

- health

- social housing

- other

Credit institutions

Subtotal

Germany

Lénder

Subtotal

Austria

Lander

Subtotal

Belgium

Regions

Communities

Public sector entities

Subtotal

Canada

Provinces

Communities

Public sector entities

Subtotal

Spain

Regions

Municipalities

Subtotal

United States

Federated States

Subtotal
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12/31/2014

Total

1,722
519
2,030
6,400
16,110
9,371

6,102
1,667
9371

3,926
48,778

854
854

197
197

87
50
69
206

22
192
129

343

232
253
485

253




EUR millions

COUNTRY

Finland

Municipalities

Public sector entities

Subtotal

Italy

State

Regions

Provinces

Municipalities

Subtotal

Japan

Municipalities

Subtotal

Portugal

Municipalities

Public sector entities

Subtotal

United Kingdom

State

Counties

Districts

Municipalities

Public sector entities

Subtotal

Sweden

Municipalities

Subtotal

Switzerland

Cantons

Municipalities

Public sector entities

Subtotal

Supranational

International organizations

Subtotal

TOTAL COVER POOL

Loans and securities are off premium / discount.
Loans and securities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at their euro swapped value. Loans and bonds are presented after specific impairments.
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In addition to these impairments, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local makes collective and sectorial impairments.
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Total

41
43

576

653

25
25

51

58

481
398

34
34

1,424
765

39
39

62,345
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Supervisory Board and Executive Board

Supervisory Board (March 2016)

Philippe Mills
Chairman

Francois Laugier
Vice Chairman

Stéphane Costa de Beauregard Sami Gotrane
Member of the Supervisory Board Member of the Supervisory Board

Béatrice Gosserez Florent Lecing
Member of the Supervisory Board Member of the Supervisory Board

Executive Board (March 2016)

Gilles Gallerne
Chairman

Caroline Gruson
Chief Executive Officer
Member of the Executive Board

Cyril Cudennec Olivier Eudes

Member of the Executive Board Member of the Executive Board

Emmanuel Moritz
Member of the Executive Board
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Directorships and positions of members
of supervisory and management bodies

In application of article L.225-102-1 of the Code of Commerce, the following list presents
the directorships and positions exercised in 2015 by every member of the supervisory and management bodies
of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local who served during the year
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Supervisory Board

CHAIRMAN

Philippe Mills

50 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2019

Date of first mandate: January 31, 2013

Principal function: Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer, SFIL
Other mandates and responsibilities:

* Chairman of the Executive Committee, SFIL

« Alternate Expert, Board of Directors, European Investment Bank - EIB

* Member of the Board of Directors, European Association of Public Banks - EAPB

IFRS Financial
Statements

VICE CHAIRMAN
Frangois Laugier

51 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2019

Date of first mandate: January 31, 2013

Principal function: Deputy Chief Executive Officer, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities: Member of the Executive Committee, SFIL

French GAAP IFRS
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MEMBERS
Stéphane Costa de Beauregard

49 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2019

Date of first mandate: January 31, 2013

Principal function: Director, Customer’s Debt Management, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities: Member of the Executive Committee, SFIL

Béatrice Gosserez

50 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: December 12, 2012 - 2017

Date of first mandate: December 12, 2012

Principal function: General Secretary, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities: Member of the Executive Committee, SFIL

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

Sami Gotrane

52 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2019

Date of first mandate: January 31, 2013

Principal function: Director, Treasury and Financial Markets, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities:

* Member of the Executive Committee, SFIL

* Chairman, CTG Financial Consulting

General Information
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Florent Lecinq

40 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: February 25, 2013 - 2019

Date of first mandate: February 25, 2013

Principal function: Chief Financial Officer, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities: Member of the Executive Committee, SFIL

Executive Board
CHAIRMAN

Gilles Gallerne

52 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2018

Date of first mandate: January 1, 2008

Principal function: Director, CAFFIL Coordination, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities: Member of the Executive Committee, SFIL

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Caroline Gruson

42 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2018

Date of first mandate: January 5, 2011

Principal function: Deputy Director, CAFFIL Coordination, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities: None

MEMBERS
Cyril Cudennec

39 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2018

Date of first mandate: January 31, 2013

Principal function:

« Director, Financial Markets, SFIL (until April 2015)

e Director, Financial Performance Management, Deputy CFO, SFIL (since April 2015)
Other mandates and responsibilities: None

Pierre-Marie Debreuille (until May 27, 2015)

40 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux

Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - May 27, 2015

Date of first mandate: January 31, 2013

Principal function: Director, Financial Performance Management, Deputy CFO, SFIL (until April 2015)
Other mandates and responsibilities: Member of the Executive Committee, SFIL (since May 2015)

Olivier Eudes (since May 27, 2015)

47 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: May 27, 2015 - 2018

Date of first mandate: May 27, 2015

Principal function: Director, Financial Markets, SFIL (since April 2015)

Other mandates and responsibilities: Manager, SCI phoenix (since August 2015)
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Emmanuel Moritz

40 years old - French nationality

Professional address: SFIL - 1-3, rue du Passeur de Boulogne 92130 Issy-les-Moulineaux
Date mandate begins and ends: January 31, 2013 - 2018

Date of first mandate: January 31, 2013

Principal function: Director, Credit Risks, SFIL

Other mandates and responsibilities: None
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Compensation of members of supervisory and management bodies

In 2015, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local paid no compensation to the members of its supervisory and management
bodies who were employees of SFIL and who exercised their mandates with no specific compensation, except for the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board, who is also a member of the parent company’s Board of Directors and only in this role

©
, : 02
receives any compensation. cCc
o O
cE
Readers are reminded that Caisse Francaise de Financement Local has no compensation committee and that reference is )
made to the Appointment and Compensation Committees that exist at the level of its parent company, SFIL. ) ©
e
)
Ll

Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditors of Caisse Frangaise de Financement Local and their alternates are:
Mazars

Exaltis - 61, rue Henri Regnault - 92075 - La Défense Cedex

represented by Anne Veaute, Partner

Alternate: Pierre Masieri

Re-appointed by the Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 26, 2011, until after the Shareholders’ Meet-
ing called to approve the financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2016.

French GAAP IFRS
Financial Statements

Deloitte & Associés

185, avenue Charles de Gaulle - 92524 Neuilly-sur-Seine Cedex

represented by Charlotte Vandeputte, Partner

Alternate: BEAS, represented by Mireille Berthelot, Partner

Re-appointed by the Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of May 26, 2011, until after the Shareholders’ Meet-
ing called to approve the financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2016.

Specific Controller

Fidus

12, rue de Ponthieu - 75008 Paris

represented by Jean-Michel Thierry, Partner

This appointment was renewed by the Supervisory Board on March 18, 2015, for a term of four years.

Alternate: Eric Lebegue

Appointed by the Supervisory Board on March 18, 2015, for a term of four years, to replace Groupement d’expertise de
France.

Social, environmental and societal information

Shareholders’ Meeting |Supplemental Disclosures

In application of article L.225-102-1 of the Code of Commerce modified by article 225 of law 2010-788 of July 12, 2010
(Grenelle 2 law) and decree 2012-557 of April 24, 2012, Caisse Francaise de Financement Local must communicate informa-
tion on labor, environmental and society-related issues in the Management Report. Since Caisse Francaise de Financement
Local has no salaried employees nor actual premises, the labor and environmental issues do not apply to this entity.

General Information
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Report of one of the Statutory Auditors,
appointed as independent third-party,
on the social, environmental and societal information
published in the management report

Year ended December 31, 2015

This is a free translation into English of the original report issued in French and is provided solely for the convenience of
English speaking readers. This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and
professional auditing standards applicable in France.

To the Shareholders,

In our capacity as Statutory Auditor of Caisse Francaise de Financement Local S.A., and appointed as independent third-
party, for whom the certification request has been approved by the French National Accreditation Body (COFRAC) under
the number 3-1048%, we hereby present you with our report on the social, environmental and societal information prepared
for the year ended December 31, 2015 (hereinafter the “CSR Information”), presented in the management report pursuant
to Article L.225-102-1 of the Code of Commerce (Code de commerce).

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COMPANY

The Executive Board is responsible for preparing a management report including CSR Information in accordance with the
provisions of Article R.225-105-1 of the Code of Commerce.

INDEPENDENCE AND QUALITY CONTROL

Our independence is defined by regulatory texts, the profession’s Code of Ethics as well as by the provisions set forth in
Article L.822-11 of the Code of Commerce. Furthermore, we have set up a quality control system that includes the docu-
mented policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with rules of ethics, professional auditing standards and the
applicable legal texts and regulations.

RESPONSABILITY OF THE STATUTORY AUDITOR

Based on our work, our responsibility is:

« to attest that the CSR Information required under article R.225-105-1 of the Code of Commerce is presented in the management
report or, in the event of omission, is explained pursuant to the third paragraph of article R.225-105 of the Code of Commerce;

* to express a reasoned opinion on the accuracy of information included in the management report and, if need be, the
explanations relating to the omission of some of the CSR Information required under the third paragraph of article
R.225-105 of the Code of Commerce;

e the procedures performed to conduct our mission.

Our work was carried out by a team of two people in March 2016. To assist us in conducting our work, we referred to our cor-

porate responsibility experts.

We conducted the following procedures in accordance with professional auditing standards applicable in France, with the order
of May 13, 2013 determining the methodology according to which the independent third party entity conducts its assignment. As
indicated page 39 of the management report, the company does not disclose any CSR information because of the absence of
employees and physical footprints. Our work consisted in the appreciation of the pertinence of the explications related to total
absence of CSR information.

Based on these procedures:
* we attest the relevance of the explanations relating to the total omission of CSR Information in the management report;
« we do not have any observation to mention about the provided explanations.

(1) the scope of which is available at www.cofrac.fr

Neuilly-sur-Seine, March 29, 2016.
French original signed by one of the statutory auditors:

DELOITTE & ASSOCIES
Charlotte Vandeputte
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Assets as of December 31, 2015 c
>
EUR millions Note 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015
Central banks 2.1 1,471 519 2,496 ]
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 2 2 %
Derivatives 4.1 6,501 8,361 7,043 g
Financial assets available for sale 2.2 1,084 2,770 889 E
Loans and advances due from banks 2.3 7,314 6,752 4,865 2
Loans and advances to customers 2.4 61,929 62,242 60,854 -g
Fair value revaluation of portfolio hedge 1,61 3,178 2,784 %
Financial assets held to maturity - - - L%
Current tax assets 2.5 13 (0] (0] w0
Deferred tax assets 25 20 929 108 e
Accruals and other assets 2.6 4 3 20 -
TOTAL ASSETS 80,017 83,926 79,061

Liabilities as of December 31, 2015
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EUR millions Note 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015

Central banks 3.1 - - -

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 8 O 2

Derivatives 4.1 10,605 13,512 12,013

Due to banks 32 6,774 6,228 5,520 o

Customer borrowings and deposits - - - %

Debt securities 33 57,129 58,501 57,142 8

Fair value revaluation of portfolio hedge 1,398 1,786 1,446 Q

Current tax liabilities 34 2 10 1 )

Deferred tax liabilities 3.4 - - - ©

Accruals and other liabilities 3.5 2,742 2,532 1,584 GC)

Provisions 3.6 - - 38 GE)

Subordinated debt - - - 8

Equity 1,359 1,357 1,315 (%

Capital and related reserve 1,315 1,315 1,315

Reserves and retained earnings 215 218 189

Gains and losses through equity a74) Q47) Mm3) 9

Net income 3 29) (76) ko

TOTAL LIABILITIES 80,017 83,926 79,061 %
0
[0)
i)
o
©
©
n
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Income statement

EUR millions Note 2013 2014 2015
Interest income 5.1 5,086 4,453 4,047
Interest expense 5.1 (4,945) (4,350) (3,932)
Fee and commission income 52 0] O (0]
Fee and commission expense 52 24) (28) (26)
Net result of financial instruments at fair value though profit or loss 53 no a4) (32)
Net result of financial assets available for sale 54 6 8 2)
Other income 0] (0] (0]
Other expense (0] 0) 0)
NET BANKING INCOME 242 69 55
Operating expense 55 (79) (93) (96)
GROSS OPERATING INCOME 163 (24) 41)
Cost of risk 5.6 a78) as) a4)
OPERATING INCOME (15) 42) (55)
Net gains (losses) on other assets - 0 -
INCOME BEFORE TAX (15) (42) (55)
Income tax 57 18 13 @D
NET INCOME 3 (29) (76)
Earnings per share (in EUR)

- Basic 0.24 (2.22) (5.79)
- Diluted 0.24 (2.22) (5.79)
Net income and unrealized or deferred gains
and losses through equity
EUR millions 2013 2014 2015
Net income 3 (29) (76)
Items will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 70 27 34
Unrealized or deferred gains and losses of financial assets available for sale 71 39 49
Unrealized or deferred gains and losses of cash flow hedges 21 2 4
Taxes on items reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (22) a4) a9)
Items will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - - -
Total of unrealized or deferred gains and losses through equity 70 27 34
NET INCOME AND GAINS AND LOSSES THROUGH EQUITY 73 2) 42)
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EUR millions Capital and reserves Unrealized or deferred gains and losses Total equity
Share capital, Retained Total Net change in Net change Total
additional earnings and fair value of in fair value
paid-in capital net income avalaible-for- of hedging
for the period sale financial derivatives,
assets, after after tax
tax
EQUITY AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 1,315 189 1,504 (118) (28) 147) 1,357
Shares issued - - - - - - -
Dividends - - - - - - -
Changes in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets through
equity - - - 31 - 31 31
Changes in fair value of derivatives
through equity - - - - 3 3 3
Changes in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets through
profit and loss - - - - - - -
Changes in fair value of derivatives
through profit and loss - - - - - - -
Net income for the period - (76) (76) - - - (76)
Other movements - - - - - - -
EQUITY AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 1,315 13 1,428 (87) (26) (M3) 1,315

Share capital currently stands at EUR 1,315,000,000 represented by 13,150,000 nominative shares.
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Cash flow statement

EUR millions 